
WELCOME 

Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation 
January 17, 2023 



JANUARY MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
TUESDAY, January 17 2023 @ 6:00 p.m. 

Via ZOOM Webinar 
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_CCvn0D6VTYaL6WONKG0OuQ 

A G E N D A 
1. CALL TO ORDER & INTRODUCTIONS.............................................................................................CHRISTOPHER PATAY, President 

2. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT by CHAIR JOE CZARSKE & AUDIT PRESENTATION by AGT, followed by public comments

3. MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 15, 2022 MEETING..............................................................................DAVID GAUTHIER, Secretary 

4. TREASURER'S REPORT..............................................................................................................................DR. JAMES FLORES, Treasurer 

5. EXECUTIVE REPORT*.........................................................................................................................PATRICK RUPPE, Executive Director 
• Contract for Board Approval: POS Specialized Residential Facility Start Up Funding with Person Centered Options, LLC
• Existing HRC Policy for Board Approval: Supported Living Service Policy
• Presentation: National Core Indicators by Thao Mailloux, Director of Information & Development

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS:
a) ARCA……………………………………………………………..………………………….............................JOE CZARSKE, LIAISON
b) AUDIT*………………………………………………………………………….................................JOE CZARSKE, CHAIRPERSON
c) BOARD DEVELOPMENT .................................................................................................................JOE CZARSKE, CHAIRPERSON 
d) BOARD PLANNING..……………………………….............................................................................KIM VUONG, CHAIRPERSON 
e) CLIENT ADVISORY. ...................................................................................................................DAVID GAUTHIER, CHAIRPERSON 
f) CLIENT SERVICES.....................................................................................................................PATRICIA JORDAN, CHAIRPERSON 
g) COMMUNITY RELATIONS...……….……………………………………………………………...ANN LEE, Ph.D, CHAIRPERSON 
h) RETIREMENT..........................................................................................................................DR. JAMES FLORES, CHAIRPERSON 
i) SELF-DETERMINATION…………………………………...............................................................ANTOINETTE PEREZ, LIAISON 
j) SERVICE PROVIDER ADVISORY.....................................................................................ANGELA RODRIGUEZ, CHAIRPERSON 

7. PUBLIC INPUT/ANNOUNCEMENTS

8. CLOSED SESSION………………………………………………………………………………………CHRISTOPHER PATAY, President 

9. ADJOURNMENT – 8:00 p.m.

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_CCvn0D6VTYaL6WONKG0OuQ


MINUTES 
November 15, 2022 

David Gauthier, HDDF Secretary 



1 

MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 15, 2022 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE HARBOR DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES FOUDNATION 

BOARD PRESENT: 
Mr. Ron Bergmann, Board Advisor 
Mr. Gordon Cardona, Board Member 
Mr. Joe Czarske, Board Member 
Dr. James Flores, Treasurer 
Dr. Marco Garcia, Board Member 
Mr. Jeffrey Herrera, Board Member 
Ms. Patricia Jordan, Board Member 
Ms. Ann Lee, Ph.D, Vice-President 
Mr. Christopher Patay, President 
Ms. Angie Rodriguez, Board Member 
Ms. Jackie Solorio, Board Member 
Ms. Kim Vuong, Board Member 
Ms. Laurie Zaleski, Board Member 

BOARD ABSENT: 
Mr. Fu-Tien Chiou, Board Advisor 
Mr. David Gauthier, Secretary 
Mr. LaVelle Gates, Board Advisor 

INTERPRETERS: 
Mr. Fernando Nunez, LRA Spanish Interpreter 
Ms. Jan Seeley, LRA ASL Interpreter 

GUESTS: 
Ms. Jaime Van Dusen, DDS 
Mr. Albert Feliciano, SCDD 
Ms. Louise Elliott, ICAN 
Ms. Adriana Garcia, HRC Parent 
Ms. Amelia Castellanos, HRC Parent 
Ms. Aquilina Castellanos, HRC Parent 
Ms. Gilberta Castellanos, HRC Parent 
Ms. Ivon Munoz, HRC Parent 
Ms. Mariela Garcia, HRC Parent 
Ms. Minerva Flores, HRC Parent 
Ms. Martha De La Torre, HRC Parent 
Ms. Martha Ramos, HRC Parent 
Ms. Silvia Calles, HRC Parent 
Ms. Andrea Machuca, HRC Parent 
Ms. Maria Poblete, HRC Parent 
Ms. Guadalupe Nolasco, HRC Parent 
Ms. Amy Alejo, HRC Service Coordinator 
Ms. Asia Atkinson,  Service Coordinator 
Mr. Benjamin Sandoval,  Service Coordinator 
Mr. Brandon Su,  Service Coordinator 
Ms. Carol Heng Lopez,  Service Coordinator 
Mr. Christian Villagomez,  Service Coordinator 
Ms. Diana Figueroa,  Service Coordinator 
Ms. Guadalupe Macias,  Service Coordinator 
Ms. Janine Diaz,  Service Coordinator 
Ms. Jennifer Gutierrez,  Service Coordinator 
Ms. Jessica Leos,  Service Coordinator 
Ms. Julie Villegas,  Service Coordinator 



 

2 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. Patay called the Board to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
Mr. Patay welcomed Board members, guest and staff; Mr. Patay took roll call of Board Members and HRC Staff and a quorum was established.  
 
Mr. Patay reviewed with visitors the various zoom instructions and how to use the interpretation feature.   
 
Mr. Patay encouraged all visitors who wish to address the Board at the end of our meeting during the time we have set aside for public comment to 
please make a request through the zoom raise your hand feature.   
 
Mr. Patay reminded the Board Members that we do not meet in December and our next regular business meeting of the Board will be on January 
17, 2023.    
 
Mr. Patay advised that he will be leaving the meeting prior to the Executive Report and Vice President, Ann Lee will conclude the meeting.  Mr. 
Patay advised that we will now proceed with our regular agenda.  
 
PRESENTATION OF MINUTES 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Mr. Patrick Ruppe, Executive Director 
Ms. Judy Wada, Chief Financial Officer 
Ms. Thao Mailloux, Director of Information & Development 
Ms. Heather Diaz, Director of Community Services 
Ms. LaWanna Blair, Director of Early Childhood Services 
Ms. Antoinette Perez, Director of Children’s Services 
Ms. Judy Samana Taimi, Director of Adult Services 
Ms. Mary Hernandez, Director of Case Management Support Services  
Mr. Richard Malin, Manager of IT 
Ms. Jennifer Lauro, Executive Assistant 
Mr. Jesus Jimenez, Department Assistant Executive Office 
 

GUESTS continued: 
Ms. Karen Renteria, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Karina Valdez, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Kenniya Fairley, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Lashelle Daisy, Service Coordinator 
Mr. Marcello Bermeo, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Maria Fitzsimons, HRC Client Service Manager 
Ms. Maria St. Jacque, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Maria Suarez, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Martha Anderson, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Norma Velasques, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Sandy Diaz, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Sheri Marshall, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Tarsi Quiroa, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Veronica Reyes, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Yanira Melenez, Service Coordinator 
Ms. Yolanda Montes, Service Coordinator 
 



 

3 
 

In Mr. Gauthier’s absence, Mr. Czarske presented the draft minutes of the September 20, 2022 meeting of our Board which were included in the 
board packet provided to all Board members and posted for the general public on the HRC website.   
 
The MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 20, 2022 BOARD MEETING were received and filed.   
 
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIALS 
Dr. Flores reviewed the following financial statements, which were received and filed:   
• Harbor Regional Center Monthly Financial Report Fiscal Year 2022-23, dated August 2022 
• Harbor Regional Center Functional Expense Summary, dated August 2022 
• Harbor Regional Center POS Contract Summary, dated August 2022 
• Harbor Regional Center Line Item Report, dated August 2022 
• Harbor Regional Center Monthly Financial Report Fiscal Year 2022-23, dated September 2022 
• Harbor Regional Center Functional Expense Summary, dated September 2022 
• Harbor Regional Center POS Contract Summary, dated September 2022 
• Harbor Regional Center Line Item Report, dated September 2022 
• Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation Harbor Help Fund Statement of Activities Fiscal Year 2022-23 
 
EXECUTIVE REPORT 

 
1. STRATEGIC PLANNING: 

Mr. Ruppe thanked all of the Board Members for their enthusiastic participation in our annual October Board retreat that focused on strategic 
planning.  Mr. Ruppe thanked Board Members for giving their time and heartfelt contributions in helping the executive leadership team with 
identifying strategic focus areas for HRC. Mr. Ruppe reviewed the post-retreat survey results with the Board and indicated that the support of 
the Board in strategic planning efforts has been enormous and well received by Board Members and Staff and looks forward to continued 
collaboration with the Board to finalize our strategic plan.  
 

2. CASELOADS: 
Mr. Ruppe reviewed with the Board Harbor Regional Center’s Caseload Report as of June 30th, the D-1 and the Core Staffing percentages.  Mr. 
Ruppe indicated that we are projecting to have a caseload of 18,029 by June 30, 2022.  We are also projecting that during this fiscal year we will 
have provided services and supports to over 20,361.    Mr. Ruppe then reviewed the D-1 allocation and noted that the line item reflecting our 
allocation for the core staffing formula only increased .03%, or $81,000 dollars.   Mr. Ruppe also noted that this small increase in the core 
staffing formula funding presents challenges to HRC as we move forward this year in trying to reduce caseload rations, as our growth was not 
accurately accounted for in our budgetary allocation.  
 

3. 2023 HDDF BOARD PRESENTATION & TRAINING PLAN: 
Mr. Ruppe reviewed in detail with the Board the draft 2023 HDDF Board Presentations and Training Plan and indicated that it would be 
submitted to DDS for approval and then posted on our website.   
 



 

4 
 

4. 2023 HDDF BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE: 
Mr. Ruppe called the Board’s attention to the HDDF Board Meeting schedule for calendar year 2023 and advised that a time change is proposed 
from 6:30 to 8:30 pm to 6:00 to 8:00 pm to allow for more participation via zoom meeting platform.   Mr. Ruppe polled the Board Members 
inquiring if they were open to starting board meetings at 6:00 pm, rather than at 6:30 pm and noted that the majority agreed to the time change 
which will be posted on our website.   
 

5. HOLIDAY GIVING: 
Mr. Ruppe reminded the Board that HRC has begun our campaign to provide assistance to families in need during the holidays and encouraged 
Board Members and guests to participate if they are able.    Mr. Ruppe thanked the Board in advance for their continued support of our holiday 
giving campaign.   

 
6. 2023 HRC PERFORMANCE PLAN presentation: 

Mr. Ruppe introduced Ms. Thao Mailloux, Director of Information and Development who made a presentation to the Board on HRC’s 2023 
Performance Plan.  There were no questions or comments received from the Board and or public and a motion was made for the Board to approve 
the plan.   
 
Dr. Jim Flores moved to approve Harbor Regional Center’s 2023 Performance Plan and Ms. Rodriguez seconded the motion, which 
was unanimously approved by the Board with no opposition or abstentions.   

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS     

 
A. ARCA 

Mr. Ruppe summarized the main topics of the October meetings and noted that the conversation focused primarily on strategic planning efforts.  
The next two day in person meeting is scheduled for January 2023.      
 

B. AUDIT 
Mr. Czarske reported that our Auditors AGT are continuing to work on the fiscal year 2021-22 independent audit and plan to present a draft to 
the Audit Committee in December then bring a final draft to the January meeting.   
 

C. BOARD DEVELOPMENT 
Mr. Ruppe reported that the Committee reviewed Trustee terms, board recruiting needs, potential candidate status, the 2022-23 Officer terms 
and needs for fiscal year 2023-24.   The next meeting is scheduled for December 14, 2022.  

 
D. COMMUNITY RELATIONS 

Chairperson Ann Lee reported that the Committee met on October 12th and primarily focused on Holiday Outreach efforts, Holiday fundraising 
and events with the goal to provide more opportunities for individuals with limited support and families to receive gifts this year.  The Committee 
also identified and discussed potential areas of focus and topics of interest for future meetings.  The next meeting is scheduled for February 8, 
2023.   
 



 

5 
 

E. RETIREMENT 
Chairperson Dr. Flores reported on the Retirement Plan Balances as of September 30, 2022.     
 

F. SELF-DETERMINATION ADVISORY 
Ms. Taimi advised the Board that the Self-Determination Advisory Committee continues to meet monthly via zoom and provided an update on 
the September and October meetings.     
 

G. SERVICE PROVIDER ADVISORY 
Chairperson Angie Rodriguez reported that the Committee met on August 2, 2022 and summarized the highlights of the meeting that included 
information on Special Incident Reporting, the ending of Alternative Services, Tailored Day Services, HCBS progress update and grants and 
emergency readiness and preparedness.   

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Ms. Lee advised that public input was next on the agenda.  Dr. Lee stated that he will call upon each person who has asked to address the Board and 
requested that he or she limit their comments to five minutes in order to accommodate everyone. 
 
Ms. Lee indicated that we had four (4) attendees request to address the Board through the Raise Your Hand feature this evening.  
 
CLOSED SESSION 
Ms. Lee advised that there will be no executive session tonight.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 7:58 p.m. 
Ms. Lee thanked all those who participated in our Board meeting tonight. 

 
 

Submitted by:_____________________________________ 
David Gauthier, Secretary 

Board of Trustees 
Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation 



FINANCIALS 

Dr. James Flores, HDDF Treasurer 



HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER
MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR 2022-23
Oct-22

FY 2022-23 Y-T-D Proj. Annual Proj. Funds
D-1 Month Exp Expenses Expenses* Available

Operations
Salaries & Benefits** 37,452,581$   2,480,416$      10,728,280$       37,621,944$         (169,363)$       
Operating Expenses** 9,965,101       543,801           2,975,556           10,357,975           (392,874)         
    less other  income (167,370)         (7,220)              (53,597) (167,370) - 
Total Operations 47,250,312     3,016,997        13,650,239         47,812,549           (562,237)         

Purchase of Service
Regular* 338,462,765   23,801,058.18 80,931,219.53    316,856,749         21,606,016     
Compliance with HCBS Regulations 622,672          - - 622,672 - 

less other income (2,144,015)      (184,710)          (752,266)             (2,144,015)            - 
Subtotal Regular 336,941,422   23,616,348      80,178,953         315,335,406         21,606,016     

CPP/CDRP/START 100,000          - - 100,000 - 
Total Purchase of Service 337,041,422   23,616,348      80,178,953         315,435,406         21,606,016     

TOTAL 384,291,734$ 26,633,345$    93,829,192$       363,247,955$       21,043,779$   

% of Budget 100.00% 6.93% 24.42% 94.52%

*

**

The initial POS Expenditure Projection (PEP) for FY 2022-23 was submitted to DDS in December 2022 and was based on October 2022 year-to-date actuals. The PEP 
includes estimated costs for new programs, growth, and pending service provider rate adjustments. POS includes an offset for other income for ICF SPA expenditures. ICF 
SPA expenditures are not funded through the contract with DDS but billed separately.

The letter of intent for the D-1 amendment was received from DDS in September 2022. DDS indicated that 50% of funds for Community Placement Plan/Community 
Resource Development Plan (CPP/CRDP) and Language Access and Cultural Competency were allocated in the D-1 and that regional centers will receive the remaining 
funds based on approved plans in a later amendment. 



Page 2
HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE SUMMARY
Oct-22

FY 2022-23 Net Expended Projected Proj. Annual Proj. Funds
D-1 Month Y-T-D Expenses Expenses Available

Purchase of Service:
Residential care facilities 134,342,239$    10,169,477$             36,819,840$        89,455,127$             126,274,967$          8,067,272$              
Day programs 96,225,763        6,155,035                 23,527,990          61,889,037               85,417,027              10,808,736              
Other purchased services 107,894,763      7,476,546                 20,583,389          84,581,366               105,164,755            2,730,008                
HCBS Compliance 622,672             -                            -                       622,672                    622,672                   -                           
TOTAL PURCHASE OF SERVICE 339,085,437      23,801,058               80,931,220          236,548,201             317,479,421            21,606,016              

Community Placement & Program Development:
TOTAL CPP/CDRP/START 100,000$           -$                          -$                     100,000                    100,000$                 -$                         

Salaries and Related Expenses:
Salaries 28,723,998 1,911,632                 8,040,075            20,831,026               28,871,101              (147,103)                  
Employee health and retirement benefits 8,317,065          545,614                    2,572,830            5,766,495                 8,339,325                (22,260)                    
Payroll taxes 411,518             23,170                      115,375               296,143                    411,518                   -                           
Total Salaries and related expenses 37,452,581        2,480,416                 10,728,280          26,893,664               37,621,944              (169,363)                  

Operating expenses:
Facility Rent 4,992,492          413,808                    2,068,385            2,924,107                 4,992,492                -                           
Equipment and facility maintenance 695,333             32,668                      147,376               547,957                    695,333                   -                           
Equipment purchases 791,716             1,757                        47,904                 743,812                    791,716                   -                           
General 1,185,711          32,863                      105,462               1,473,123                 1,578,585                (392,874)                  
Communication 679,225             30,251                      169,567               509,658                    679,225                   -                           
Contract and consultant fee 150,405             3,020                        14,625                 135,780                    150,405                   -                           
The letter of intent for the D-1 amendment was rece 479,663             8,732                        159,976               319,687                    479,663                   -                           
Staff travel 135,850             2,548                        4,613                   131,237                    135,850                   -                           
Legal fees 142,221             228                           2,563                   139,658                    142,221                   -                           
Printing 338,133             4,231                        33,181                 304,952                    338,133                   -                           
Insurance 293,275             13,270                      205,981               87,294                      293,275                   -                           
Accounting fees 60,800               -                            12,400                 48,400                      60,800                     -                           
Board expenses 20,277               426                           3,523                   16,754                      20,277                     -                           
Total Operating expenses 9,965,101          543,801                    2,975,556            7,382,419                 10,357,975              (392,874)                  

TOTAL OPERATIONS 47,417,682 3,024,217 13,703,836 34,276,083 47,979,919 (562,237)                  

TOTAL EXPENSES 386,603,119$    26,825,275$             94,635,055$        270,924,285$           365,559,340$          21,043,779$            

Revenues:
ICF SPA Income (2,144,015)$       (184,710)$                 (752,266)$            (1,391,749)$              (2,144,015)$             -$                         
Other income (167,370) (7,220) (53,597) (113,773)                   (167,370) -                           
TOTAL REVENUES (2,311,385)$       (191,931)$                 (805,863)$            (1,505,522)$              (2,311,385)$             -$                         

TOTAL 384,291,734$    26,633,345$             93,829,192$        269,418,763$           363,247,955$          21,043,779$            

Client Caseload
Month End Caseload 17,373                 



Page 3
HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER
POS CONTRACT SUMMARY

Oct-22

Fiscal 
Year Contract Fund POS Budget POS Claimed

Current 
Balance/ 
(Deficit)

Projected 
Expenses

Projected 
Balance/ 
(Deficit)

2022-23 D-1 Reg POS 336,318,750$       80,178,953$   256,139,797$   234,533,781$       21,606,016$  
7476545.8 100,000                -                  100,000            100,000                -                 
HCBS Compliance 622,672                -                  622,672            622,672                -                 
TOTAL 337,041,422$       80,178,953$   256,862,469$   235,256,453$       21,606,016$  

2021-22 C-3 Reg POS 283,199,754$       257,797,127$ 25,402,627$     5,935,081$           19,467,546$  
CPP/CDRP/START 2,535,000             289,044          2,245,956         2,245,956             -                 
HCBS Compliance 1,373,394             358,423          1,014,971         1,014,971             -                 
TOTAL 287,108,148$       258,444,594$ 28,663,554$     9,196,008$           19,467,546$  

2020-21 B-4 Reg POS 251,586,411$       244,144,783$ 7,441,628$       50,000                  7,391,628$    
CPP/CDRP 794,841                452,205          342,636            342,636                -                 
HCBS Compliance 514,630                187,623          327,007            327,007                -                 
TOTAL 252,895,882$       244,784,611$ 8,111,271$       719,643$              7,391,628$    



Page 4
HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER

LINE ITEM REPORT
Oct-22

                  
FY 2022-23 Net Expended Projected Proj. Annual Proj. Funds

D-1 Month Y-T-D Expenses Expenses Available
PURCHASE OF SERVICE

Regular
320** Out-of-Home 134,342,239        10,169,477$   36,819,840$   89,455,127$     126,274,967$   8,067,272$     
430** Day Programs 96,225,763          6,155,035       23,527,990     61,889,037       85,417,027       10,808,736     
6505* Transportation 10,759,074          766,198          2,609,213       6,695,792         9,305,005         1,454,069       
650** Other Services 97,135,689          6,710,347       17,974,176     77,885,574       95,859,750       1,275,939       
TBD HCBS Compliance 622,672               -                  -                  622,672            622,672            -                   
Subtotal Regular POS 339,085,437 23,801,058 80,931,220 236,548,201 317,479,421 21,606,016

Revenue
20090 ICF SPA Income (2,144,015)           (184,710)         (752,266)         (1,391,749)        (2,144,015)        -                   

TOTAL PURCHASE OF SERVICE 336,941,422        23,616,348     80,178,953     235,156,453     315,335,406     21,606,016     

Community Placement & Program Development  
32010 Start Up -                       -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   
65*** Placement/Assessment 100,000               -                  -                  100,000            100,000            -                   
TBD START (Non-CPP Ops) -                       -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   

TOTAL CPP/CDRP/START 100,000               -                  -                  100,000            100,000            -                   

OPERATIONS  
Salaries & Benefits

2501- Salaries and Wages 28,723,998          1,911,632       8,040,075       20,831,026       28,871,101       (147,103)         
Th2503- Benefits 8,728,583            568,784          2,688,205       6,062,638         8,750,843         (22,260)           

Subtotal Salaries & Benefits 37,452,581          2,480,416       10,728,280     26,893,664       37,621,944       (169,363)         

Operating Expenses
30020 Equipment Maint 364,912               21,661            84,194            280,718            364,912            -                   
30030 Facility Rental 4,890,567            413,808          2,068,385       2,822,182         4,890,567         -                   
30035 Facility Rent Subleases 101,925               -                  -                  101,925            101,925            -                   
30040 Facility Maint 330,421               11,006            63,182            267,239            330,421            -                   
30050 Communication 679,225               30,251            169,567          509,658            679,225            -                   
30060 General Office Exp 196,538               8,621              32,616            163,922            196,538            -                   
30070 Printing 338,133               4,231              33,181            304,952            338,133            -                   
30080 Insurance 293,275               13,270            205,981          87,294              293,275            -                   
30090 Utilities 16,924                 -                  5,947              10,977              16,924              -                   
30110 Data Processing Maint 258,539               -                  120,982          137,557            258,539            -                   
30123 Interest/Bank Expense 7,662                   111                 430                 7,232                 7,662                 -                   
30140 Legal Fees 142,221               228                 2,563              139,658            142,221            -                   
30150 Board of Dir. Exp 20,277                 426                 3,523              16,754              20,277              -                   
30160 Accounting Fees 60,800                 -                  12,400            48,400              60,800              -                   
30170 Equipment Purchases 791,716               1,757              47,904            743,812            791,716            -                   
30180 Contr/Consult Services 150,405               3,020              14,625            135,780            150,405            -                   
30184 Clinical Services 93,952                 8,258              8,258              85,694              93,952              -                   
30185 Employee Conferences 49,868                 2,647              7,522              42,346              49,868              -                   
30220 Travel in State 35,850                 1,147              2,753              33,097              35,850              -                   
30223 Staff Mileage 100,000               1,401              1,860              98,140              100,000            -                   
30230 ARCA Dues 100,573               -                  -                  100,573            100,573            -                   
30240 General Expenses 548,444               21,958            89,682            458,762            548,444            -                   
30241 Disparities, Language Access 392,874               -                  -                  785,748            785,748            (392,874)         
Subtotal Operating Expenses 9,965,101            543,801          2,975,556       7,382,419         10,357,975       (392,874)         

Other Revenue
20040 Interest Income (29,598)                (8)                    (9,473)             (20,125)             (29,598)             -                   
20050 Other Income (4,803)                  (150)                (865)                (3,938)               (4,803)               -                   
20055 Other Income-Subleases (88,099)                (4,471)             (30,658)           (57,441)             (88,099)             -                   
20100 ICF SPA Admin Fee (44,870)                (2,590)             (12,601)           (32,269)             (44,870)             -                   
Subtotal Other Revenue (167,370)              (7,220)             (53,597)           (113,773)           (167,370)           -                   

TOTAL OPERATIONS 47,250,312          3,016,997       13,650,239     34,162,310       47,812,549       (562,237)         

TOTAL 384,291,734$      26,633,345$   93,829,192$   269,418,763$   363,247,955$   21,043,779$   
% of Budget 100.00% 6.93% 24.42% 70.11% 94.52% 5.48%



HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER
MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR 2022-23
Nov-22

FY 2022-23 Y-T-D Proj. Annual Proj. Funds
D-1 Month Exp Expenses Expenses* Available

Operations
Salaries & Benefits** 37,452,581$    2,736,859$     13,465,139$       37,621,944$         (169,363)$       
Operating Expenses** 9,965,101        584,936          3,560,492           10,357,975           (392,874)         
       less other  income (167,370)          (8,819)            (62,416)               (167,370)               -                  
Total Operations 47,250,312      3,312,977       16,963,215         47,812,549           (562,237)         

Purchase of Service
Regular* 338,462,765    25,417,001     106,348,220       316,946,154         21,516,611     
Compliance with HCBS Regulations 622,672           -                 -                      622,672                -                  

less other income (2,144,015)       (150,871)        (903,137)             (2,144,015)            -                  
Subtotal Regular 336,941,422    25,266,130     105,445,083       315,424,811         21,516,611     

CPP/CDRP/START 100,000           -                 -                      100,000                -                  
Total Purchase of Service 337,041,422    25,266,130     105,445,083       315,524,811         21,516,611     

TOTAL 384,291,734$  28,579,107$   122,408,299$     363,337,360$       20,954,374$   

% of Budget 100.00% 7.44% 31.85% 94.55%

*

**

The Projected Annual Expenses for Regular POS is based on actual expenditures through November and estimated costs of new programs, growth, and pending service 
provider rate changes. POS includes an offset for other income for ICF SPA expenditures. ICF SPA expenditures are not funded through the contract with DDS but billed 
separately. The Projected Expenses remained steady compared to the prior month financial report.

The letter of intent for the D-1 amendment was received from DDS in September 2022. DDS indicated that 50% of funds for Community Placement Plan/Community 
Resource Development Plan (CPP/CRDP) and Language Access and Cultural Competency were allocated in the D-1 and that regional centers will receive the remaining 
funds based on approved plans in a later amendment. 



Page 2
HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE SUMMARY
Nov-22

FY 2022-23 Net Expended Projected Proj. Annual Proj. Funds
D-1 Month Y-T-D Expenses Expenses Available

Purchase of Service:
Residential care facilities 134,342,239$    9,517,158$               46,336,998$        80,038,329$             126,375,327$          7,966,912$               
Day programs 96,225,763        6,102,242                 29,630,232          55,778,352               85,408,584               10,817,179               
Other purchased services 107,894,763      9,797,601                 30,380,990          74,781,253               105,162,243            2,732,520                 
HCBS Compliance 622,672             -                            -                       622,672                    622,672                    -                            
TOTAL PURCHASE OF SERVICE 339,085,437      25,417,001               106,348,220        211,220,606             317,568,826            21,516,611               

Community Placement & Program Development:
TOTAL CPP/CDRP/START 100,000$           -$                          -$                     100,000                    100,000$                  -$                          

Salaries and Related Expenses:
Salaries 28,723,998 2,163,312                 10,203,386          18,667,715               28,871,101               (147,103)                  
Employee health and retirement benefits 8,317,065          550,378                    3,115,245            5,224,080                 8,339,325                 (22,260)                    
Payroll taxes 411,518             23,170                      146,507               265,011                    411,518                    -                            
Total Salaries and related expenses 37,452,581        2,736,859                 13,465,139          24,156,805               37,621,944               (169,363)                  

Operating expenses:
Facility Rent 4,992,492          416,928                    2,485,313            2,507,179                 4,992,492                 -                            
Equipment and facility maintenance 695,333             44,625                      192,001               503,332                    695,333                    -                            
Equipment purchases 791,716             -                            47,904                 743,812                    791,716                    -                            
General 1,185,711          19,037                      124,500               1,454,085                 1,578,585                 (392,874)                  
Communication 679,225             61,740                      231,306               447,919                    679,225                    -                            
Contract and consultant fee 150,405             (2,128)                       12,497                 137,908                    150,405                    -                            
General office expenses 479,663             7,467                        167,442               312,221                    479,663                    -                            
Staff travel 135,850             621                           5,234                    130,616                    135,850                    -                            
Legal fees 142,221             5,000                        7,563                    134,658                    142,221                    -                            
Printing 338,133             646                           33,827                 304,306                    338,133                    -                            
Insurance 293,275             -                            205,981               87,294                      293,275                    -                            
Accounting fees 60,800               31,000                      43,400                 17,400                      60,800                      -                            
Board expenses 20,277               -                            3,523                    16,754                      20,277                      -                            
Total Operating expenses 9,965,101          584,936                    3,560,492            6,797,483                 10,357,975               (392,874)                  

TOTAL OPERATIONS 47,417,682 3,321,796 17,025,631 30,954,288 47,979,919 (562,237)                  

TOTAL EXPENSES 386,603,119$    28,738,796$             123,373,851$      242,274,894$           365,648,745$          20,954,374$            

Revenues:
ICF SPA Income (2,144,015)$       (150,871)$                 (903,137)$            (1,240,878)$              (2,144,015)$             -$                          
Other income (167,370) (8,819) (62,416) (104,954)                   (167,370) -                            
TOTAL REVENUES (2,311,385)$       (159,689)$                 (965,553)$            (1,345,832)$              (2,311,385)$             -$                          

TOTAL 384,291,734$    28,579,107$             122,408,299$      240,929,061$           363,337,360$          20,954,374$            

Client Caseload
Month End Caseload 17,413                 



Page 3
HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER
POS CONTRACT SUMMARY

Nov-22

Fiscal 
Year Contract Fund POS Budget POS Claimed

Current 
Balance/ 
(Deficit)

Projected 
Expenses

Projected 
Balance/ 
(Deficit)

2022-23 D-1 Reg POS 336,318,750$       105,445,083$  230,873,667$   209,357,056$       21,516,611$   
CPP/CDRP/START 100,000                -                  100,000            100,000                -                 
HCBS Compliance 622,672                -                  622,672            622,672                -                 
TOTAL 337,041,422$       105,445,083$  231,596,339$   210,079,728$       21,516,611$   

2021-22 C-3 Reg POS 283,199,754$       258,035,204$  25,164,550$     5,697,004$           19,467,546$   
CPP/CDRP/START 2,535,000             389,044           2,145,956         2,145,956             -                 
HCBS Compliance 1,373,394             381,935           991,459            991,459                -                 
TOTAL 287,108,148$       258,806,183$  28,301,965$     8,834,419$           19,467,546$   

2020-21 B-4 Reg POS 251,586,411$       244,185,209$  7,401,202$       50,000                  7,351,202$     
CPP/CDRP 794,841                627,205           167,636            167,636                -                 
HCBS Compliance 514,630                187,623           327,007            327,007                -                 
TOTAL 252,895,882$       245,000,037$  7,895,845$       544,643$              7,351,202$     



Page 4
HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER

LINE ITEM REPORT
Nov-22

                  
FY 2022-23 Net Expended Projected Proj. Annual Proj. Funds

D-1 Month Y-T-D Expenses Expenses Available
PURCHASE OF SERVICE

Regular
320** Out-of-Home 134,342,239        9,517,158$     46,336,998$   80,038,329$     126,375,327$   7,966,912$      
430** Day Programs 96,225,763          6,102,242       29,630,232     55,778,352       85,408,584       10,817,179      
6505* Transportation 10,759,074          487,886          3,097,100       6,222,650         9,319,749         1,439,325        
650** Other Services 97,135,689          9,309,715       27,283,891     68,558,604       95,842,494       1,293,195        
TBD HCBS Compliance 622,672               -                  -                  622,672             622,672             -                   
Subtotal Regular POS 339,085,437 25,417,001 106,348,220 211,220,606 317,568,826 21,516,611

Revenue
20090 ICF SPA Income (2,144,015)           (150,871)         (903,137)         (1,240,878)        (2,144,015)        -                   

TOTAL PURCHASE OF SERVICE 336,941,422        25,266,130     105,445,083   209,979,728     315,424,811     21,516,611      

Community Placement & Program Development  
32010 Start Up -                       -                  -                  -                     -                     -                   
65*** Placement/Assessment 100,000               -                  -                  100,000             100,000             -                   
TBD START (Non-CPP Ops) -                       -                  -                  -                     -                     -                   

TOTAL CPP/CDRP/START 100,000               -                  -                  100,000             100,000             -                   

OPERATIONS  
Salaries & Benefits

2501- Salaries and Wages 28,723,998          2,163,312       10,203,386     18,667,715       28,871,101       (147,103)         
2503- Benefits 8,728,583            573,548          3,261,753       5,489,090         8,750,843         (22,260)           
Subtotal Salaries & Benefits 37,452,581          2,736,859       13,465,139     24,156,805       37,621,944       (169,363)         

Operating Expenses
30020 Equipment Maint 364,912               22,144            106,339          258,573             364,912             -                   
30030 Facility Rental 4,890,567            416,928          2,485,313       2,405,254         4,890,567         -                   
30035 Facility Rent Subleases 101,925               -                  -                  101,925             101,925             -                   
30040 Facility Maint 330,421               22,480            85,662             244,759             330,421             -                   
30050 Communication 679,225               61,740            231,306          447,919             679,225             -                   
30060 General Office Exp 196,538               7,270              39,886             156,652             196,538             -                   
30070 Printing 338,133               646                 33,827             304,306             338,133             -                   
30080 Insurance 293,275               -                  205,981          87,294               293,275             -                   
30090 Utilities 16,924                 -                  5,947               10,977               16,924               -                   
30110 Data Processing Maint 258,539               -                  120,982          137,557             258,539             -                   
30123 Interest/Bank Expense 7,662                   197                 627                  7,035                 7,662                 -                   
30140 Legal Fees 142,221               5,000              7,563               134,658             142,221             -                   
30150 Board of Dir. Exp 20,277                 -                  3,523               16,754               20,277               -                   
30160 Accounting Fees 60,800                 31,000            43,400             17,400               60,800               -                   
30170 Equipment Purchases 791,716               -                  47,904             743,812             791,716             -                   
30180 Contr/Consult Services 150,405               (2,128)             12,497             137,908             150,405             -                   
30184 Clinical Services 93,952                 6,910              15,169             78,783               93,952               -                   
30185 Employee Conferences 49,868                 -                  7,522               42,346               49,868               -                   
30220 Travel in State 35,850                 (200)                2,553               33,297               35,850               -                   
30223 Staff Mileage 100,000               821                 2,682               97,318               100,000             -                   
30230 ARCA Dues 100,573               -                  -                  100,573             100,573             -                   
30240 General Expenses 548,444               12,127            101,809          446,635             548,444             -                   
30241 Disparities, Language Access 392,874               -                  -                  785,748             785,748             (392,874)         
Subtotal Operating Expenses 9,965,101            584,936          3,560,492       6,797,483         10,357,975       (392,874)         

Other Revenue
20040 Interest Income (29,598)                (1,904)             (11,377)           (18,221)             (29,598)             -                   
20050 Other Income (4,803)                  (100)                (965)                (3,838)               (4,803)               -                   
20055 Other Income-Subleases (88,099)                (4,471)             (35,129)           (52,970)             (88,099)             -                   
20100 ICF SPA Admin Fee (44,870)                (2,343)             (14,944)           (29,926)             (44,870)             -                   
Subtotal Other Revenue (167,370)              (8,819)             (62,416)           (104,954)           (167,370)           -                   

TOTAL OPERATIONS 47,250,312          3,312,977       16,963,215     30,849,334       47,812,549       (562,237)         

TOTAL 384,291,734$      28,579,107$   122,408,299$ 240,929,061$   363,337,360$   20,954,374$   
% of Budget 100.00% 7.44% 31.85% 62.69% 94.55% 5.45%



EXECUTIVE REPORT

Patrick Ruppe, HRC Executive Director 
January 17, 2023 



 

BUDGET UPDATE  
• Legislative Analyst Office Report (LAO): The 2023-24 

Budget: California’s Fiscal Outlook 
 LAO REPORT 

 
• Governor’s Proposed Budget 
 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

 
 

https://www.dropbox.com/s/e062tw4tq88rlmm/LAO%20Report_Budget%20Outlook_PMR%20version.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/e062tw4tq88rlmm/LAO%20Report_Budget%20Outlook_PMR%20version.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/geqa2qs1ogrq9uc/Governor_Budget_Highlights_2023.pdf?dl=0


 

 
 

HRC BOARD COMPOSITION 
 
 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA--HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
 

DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES 
1215 O Street, MS 8-30 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
TTY: 711 
(833) 421-0061 

 
 
 
 

November 7, 2022 
 
 

Chris Patay, Board President 
Patrick Ruppe, Executive Director 
Harbor Regional Center 
21231 Hawthorne Boulevard 
Torrance, CA 90503 

 
Dear Mr. Patay and Mr. Ruppe: 

 
Thank you for completing and submitting the 2022 Board Composition Survey issued 
by the Department of Developmental Services (Department). Pursuant to Welfare & 
Institutions (W&I) Code section 4622.5, “By August 15 of each year, the governing 
board of each regional center shall submit to the department detailed documentation, 
as determined by the department, demonstrating that the composition of the board is in 
compliance with section 4622.” Harbor Regional Center (HRC) submitted a completed 
survey on August 12, 2022. 

 
HRC’s Board composition complies with all requirements pursuant to W&I Code section 
4622. HRC’s Bylaws state that the Board of Directors should have a range of 13 to 20 
members. The survey lists 13 members as serving on the board and all their terms of 
office fall within the statutory limits. HRC’s Board also includes a member from the 
provider advisory committee as required. 

 
HRC’s diligence with board composition is demonstrated in meeting the requirements 
of geographic, ethnic, and disability representation. HRC’s Board maintains requisite 
members with legal, management or board governance, finance, and developmental 
disability program expertise, as well as members with an interest in, or knowledge of, 
developmental disabilities. The Department also acknowledges the required inclusion 
of individuals receiving regional center services and parents/legal guardians of 
individuals served. 

 
The Department recognizes the tremendous commitment and responsibility involved 
in board membership and appreciates your efforts. The Department also recognizes 
the complexity of maintaining compliance within the context of HRC’s Bylaws, board 
member term limits, and the multi-faceted contributions of each board member. 

 
 
 
 

“Building Partnerships, Supporting Choices” 



Chris Patay, Board President 
Patrick Ruppe, Executive Director 
November 7, 2022 
Page two 

 
 

If you have questions regarding this correspondence, please contact Jamie Van Dusen, 
Primary Regional Center Liaison, Office of Community Operations, at (916) 639-4711 
or by email, at jamie.vandusen@dds.ca.gov. 

 

Sincerely, 
 
 

ERNIE CRUZ 
Deputy Director 
Community Services Division 

 
cc: Amy Westling, Association of Regional Center Agencies 

Brian Winfield, Department of Developmental Services 
Aaron Christian, Department of Developmental Services 
Jacqueline Gaytan, Department of Developmental Services 
Jamie Van Dusen, Department of Developmental Services 

mailto:jamie.vandusen@dds.ca.gov


 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING 
update 

 



1 | P a g e

Harbor Regional Center 
Strategic Planning Process Timeline 

(As of 01-08-23)
ACTIVITIES TARGET 

DATES 
ACTUAL 
DATES 

Review and revise, as needed, HRC’s vision, mission & guiding values Jul/Aug 2022 Jul/Aug 2022 

HRC Board of Trustees’ to adopt newly revised vision, mission & guiding values 09-20-22 09-20-22

HRC Board of Trustees’ Strategic Planning Retreat 10-15-22 10-15-22

Share agreed up strategic focus areas, revised goals at Executive Committee and timeline for 
planning process 

11-01-22 11-01-22

Brief report at HRC Board of Trustee’s Meeting about HRC’s ongoing work in the strategic 
planning process 

11-15-22 &
01-17-23

11-15-22

Ongoing work with Executive Director and Executive Leadership on strategic planning 
process: objectives, strategies, work plans 

Every 2 weeks 
from 10-25-22 

to 06-30-23 

Continues every 
2 weeks & more 
often as needed 

Ongoing work with Executive Director and Executive Committee on strategic planning 
process: goals and objectives, draft document, timelines, etc. 

Via emails & 
meetings  

11-01-22 to
02-21-23

11-01-22 &
01-03-23



2 | P a g e

Harbor Regional Center 
Strategic Planning Process Timeline 

(As of 01-08-23)
ACTIVITIES TARGET 

DATES 
ACTUAL 
DATES 

HRC Board of Trustees Training – refresher on Strategic Planning process; review draft 
Strategic Plan; discuss next steps 

02-21-23

Final draft of Strategic Plan approved by Executive Committee for approval by HRC’s Board 
of Trustees 

03-07-23

Strategic Plan presented for approval at HRC’s Board of Trustees’ meeting 03-21-23

Operational/Work Plans developed to align with Strategic Plan document and approved by 
Executive Director 

06-30-23
Operational/Work 
Plans developed to 
align with Strategic 
Plan document and 

approved by 
Executive Director 

Strategic Plan and accompanying operational/work plans are implemented 07-01-23

Updates to Board of Trustees on progress toward meeting Strategic Plan goals & objectives Quarterly beginning 
October 2023 



 

 
REVISED POLICY  

FOR BOARD APPROVAL 
SUPPORTED LIVING 

 
 

 



Harbor Regional Center Service Policy 
SUPPORTED LIVING 

DEFINITION: 

Supported Living Services (SLS) assist people with disabilities, regardless of the severity of their disabilities to live in their own home, participate in 
activities that interest them and build relationships with those they choose.  Supported living services may change over time and are provided based 
upon individual needs for as long as needed.  Underlying the concept of supported living are the principles of self-determination and person-centered 
planning wherein people with disabilities make their own choices about how they live their lives.  The primary purpose of supported living is to give 
people the help they need to become as independent as possible and to achieve the outcomes they choose for themselves.  Individual choice guides 
supported living services as long as these choices do not pose a threat to health or safety.  Supported living services are more fully described in Welfare 
& Institutions Code §4689 and have the following characteristics: 

1. People choose where and with whom to live in settings typical of non-disabled peers in a house or apartment in which no parent or conservator of
the person resides and which the person chooses, owns and rents, controls and occupies as a principal place of residence;

2. People determine the routines, create the home atmosphere, make decision about who will enter and who will live there, develop their own rituals
and celebrations and have a feeling of ownership;

3. A combination of natural supports (neighbors, families, friends, roommates, etc.), community supports (community services and organizations such 
as religious organizations and social clubs), “generic” supports (personal care assistance through In-Home Supported Services, Supplemental
Security Income (SSI) etc.), environmental adaptions (push button telephones, beepers, computers, switches, intercom systems, audio and video
tape recorders and other technology), other formal supports (professional services, skills training and other purchased services and supports) are
provided to ensure that a person’s support needs are met and personal preferences are respected;

4. Services and supports focus on individual capabilities and strengths and are furnished where the person lives and within the context of his or her
day-to-day activities;

5. Supported living encourages interdependence and enables people to experience the value of relationships within families, neighborhoods and
communities; and

6. Housing and support services are not provided by the same organization so that the individual’s home is not jeopardized by a change in his or her
relationship to a supported living service provider.

7. 

Formatted: Left:  0.5", Right:  0.5", Top:  1", Bottom:  1",
Width:  11", Height:  8.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering



The range of supported living services and supports available includes, but is not limited to: assistance in finding, modifying and maintaining a home, 
facilitating circles of support to encourage the development of unpaid and natural supports in the community; advocacy and self-advocacy facilitation; 
development of employment opportunities; social and daily living skills, training and support; provision of 24 hour emergency response systems; 
securing adaptive equipment and supplies; recruiting and training individuals, paid or unpaid, to provide personal care and other assistance; and 
facilitating community participation.  

PHILOSOPHY: 

Harbor Regional Center believes that if a person wants to live in his or her own home, it is up to the person, his or her family, his or her conservator, 
the regional center service coordinator and other members of his or her planning team to help him or her identify (through the person-centered planning 
process) what he or she will need in the way of supports and services in order to accomplish this goal.  Harbor Regional Center is committed to 
providing the support necessary to enable people with developmental disabilities who choose this living arrangement, irrespective of the intensity of 
their challenges, to live in their own homes and to benefit from the enriched opportunities and community relationships which often develop in these 
settings.   

Harbor Regional Center has been a leader in the development of affordable housing options for people who reside in supported living settings by 
spearheading the creating of Home Ownership for Personal Empowerment (HOPE), an organization whose mission is to develop stable, safe and 
affordable living options for people with developmental disabilities.  The formation of HOPE and the fostering of an ongoing partnership with HOPE 
in the creation of new and innovative models of affordable settings for supported living services delivery remains one of Harbor Regional Center’s 
highest priority. 

POLICY: 

Harbor Regional Center may purchase supported living services for a client person  under the following circumstances: 

1. The client person is at least 18 years of age.
2. Risks of endangerment to health, safety and well-being associated with this living arrangement are understood by the clientperson/family and can

be minimized through individualized supports;
3. The client person has chosen supported living as the most appropriate and desired living option;
4. The homehome  chosen by the client person is not also the place of residence of their parent, conservator or caregiver;
5. The client person has or is eligible to receive, the financial resources necessary to pay for rent/mortgage, utilities, food, clothing and all other typical 

daily living expenses. except that Harbor Regional Center may make temporary rent, mortgage, lease or household expense payments:

Formatted: Highlight



• In extraordinary circumstances
• When the HRC Executive Director verifies in writing that making the rent, mortgage or lease payments or paying for household expenses 

is required to meet the specific care needs unique to the individual person as set forth in an addendum to the person’s individual person-
centered plan; and

• That such temporary payment is required when the person has a documented medical, behavioral or psychiatric condition which presents 
a health and safety risk to himself or herself or another pursuant to the provisions of Welfare & Institutions Code §4689(i)(l).

6. Every feasible alternative source of service and support has been explored and utilized, including natural supports, community supports and generic
supports, including but not limited to: subsidized housing, In-Home Supportive Services, SSI, private insurance, private trusts, Medi-Cal, Medicare
and Veteran’s Benefits.

6. 
7. . In accordance with HRC Service Policy “ General Standards” exceptions may be granted to this policy when the IFSP/IPP team establishes a

need to authorize services outside of the service policy criteria 

Approved by the HDDF Board of Trustees on March 20, 2018 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering



 

 
 

RETROACTIVE CONTRACT  
FOR BOARD APPROVAL 

 
 

 



CONTRACTS REQUIRING BOARD APPROVAL 
RATIFICATION

Harbor Regional Center 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

January 17, 2023 

PURCHASE OF SERVICE 

Specialized Residential Facility Start Up Funding 

Person Centered Options, LLC 
16427 Strongwood Lane 
Fontana, CA 92336 

Description of Services: 
CPP/CRDP start-up funds may fund up to the approved amount for the acquisition and renovation of one (1) negotiated rate specialized service 
home for three (3) regional center clients.  The home shall have four (4) bedrooms and one (1) bedroom shall be reserved for period use as respite 
for various HRC clients.  The home shall be staffed and equipped to serve regional center clients who present as challenging to serve.  

Contract Period: June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2022 
Estimated Amount: $300,000.00 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, ____________________________________ of Harbor Regional Center do certify that the foregoing is a true,  

exact and correct copy of the contract(s) presented to and ratify by the Board of Trustees on the _______ day of _________, 2023. 

Signed by:__________________________________________ Date:______________________________ 



Harbor Regional Center 
2023 Demographic & Expenditure Data  

Public Meeting Notice 

March 28, 2023 from 6:00-8:00 pm via zoom
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_C6wmw8VsRq-afrd5VKAgng 

And On 
March 30, 2023 from 6:00-8:00 pm via zoom
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_t8KngxMLTi6UmF4DRt1PCA 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_C6wmw8VsRq-afrd5VKAgng
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_t8KngxMLTi6UmF4DRt1PCA


 

 
 

2022 HOLIDAY GIVING 
update 

 
 

 



HEARTS FOR THE HOLIDAYS2022



HEARTS FOR THE HOLIDAYS 2022
Campaign RAISED

$ 9,000



FEATURED ON

TORRANCE'S CITICABLE

DAILY BREEZE



HOLIDAY GIVING

OPERATION
GOBBLE 91ST ANNUAL

HOLIDAY
BASKETS

8TH ANNUAL
MERRY BEARY
DRIVE-THRUCarson/Gardena/Domi

nguez rotary club

sandpipers

gardena elks

20 boxes of food to feed
family of ten
Each family received a
certificate for turkey

Four families were nominated by
Parent Mentor Team
Each family received $250 grocery
gift card, household & personal
essential items, each child under 18
years received $75 worth of toys &
$35 shoe certificate

90 Individualized Build-a
Bears were given to children
3-6 years old

HRC GIFT
CARDS

HARBOR HELP FUND

$69,100 in Gift Cards were
mailed or hand delivered to
691 individuals & families
served by HRC



HARBOR HOLIDAY CARD

ARTWORK BY DAVID MARIO PLATT



MERRY BEARY



HARBOR FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
GIFTING EVENT



Community Partners &
Sponsors

17 Businesses &
ORGANIZATIONS

 
29 Individuals & 

FAMILIES



Community Partners &
Sponsors



MORE TO COME iN 2023
THERE ARE MANY WAYS TO GET

INVOLVED!

WWW.HARBORRC.ORG/SUPPORT-
HARBOR-HELP-FUND

resource.center@harborrc.org



 

PRESENTATION 
On 

National Core Indicators (NCI) 
By 

Thao Mailloux, Director of  
Information & Development  

 
 































































COMMITTEE REPORTS 
•ARCA Joe Czarske 
•Audit*action required Joe Czarske 
•Board Development Joe Czarske 
•Board Planning Kim Vuong 
•Client Advisory David Gauthier 
•Client Services Patricia Jordan 
•Community Relations Ann Lee, Ph.D. 
•Retirement Dr. James Flores 
• Self-Determination Antoinette Perez 
• Service Provider Advisory Angie Rodriguez 



 

 

 

Harbor Regional Center 
Audit Committee Meeting 

December 8, 2022 
 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 
In attendance:  Joe Czarske (Chair), Angie Rodriguez, Laurie Zaleski, Judy Wada, Ute 

Czemmel, Tes Castillo, Kristel Maikranz, and Randal Burris 
 
Minutes: 
The Audit Committee held a meeting on December 8, 2022 at 12:00 pm via Zoom. 

 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Audit 
Kristel Maikranz from AGT presented the committee with the draft financial statements and 
draft board report for the Fiscal Year 2021-22. The committee reviewed the board report and 
the schedule of findings and questioned costs of the draft financial statements.  Kristel reported 
that AGT will be issuing an unmodified opinion on the financial statement audit.  AGT will 
also be issuing an unmodified opinion on the compliance audit relating to the major federal 
program.  There were no material weaknesses identified and no significant deficiencies 
reported.  This is the highest level of assurance that can be given.  

 
The committee reviewed a comparison of the statement of functional expenses for Fiscal Years 
2020-21 and 2021-22. 

 
Following a discussion among the committee members and AGT, the committee approved the 
draft financial statements as presented.  After approval of the draft financial statements, the audit 
committee members went into executive session with AGT. 
 
Judy Wada will present the financial statements to the Executive Committee on January 3, 2023, 
and AGT will present the financial statements to the Board on January 17, 2023. Preparation of 
the Form 990 will then take place for submission to the Executive Committee on May 2, 2023 
and subsequent distribution to the full board.  Filing deadline for the Form 990 is May 15, 2023. 

 

uc 
 
 



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
Torrance, California 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

 

  Page 
  Number 

Independent Auditors’ Report  1 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

Statements of Financial Position  5 

Statements of Activities  6 

Statements of Functional Expenses  7 

Statements of Cash Flows  9 

Notes to the Financial Statements  10 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards  22 

OTHER REPORTS SECTION 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over  
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters  
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in  
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards  24 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance For Each  
Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over 
Compliance in Accordance With the Uniform Guidance  26 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS SECTION 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs  30 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings  31 

 

DRAFT



 

Page 1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation 
Torrance, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation dba Harbor 
Regional Center, a California nonprofit corporation (the Foundation), which comprise the statements of 
financial  position  as  of  June  30,  2022  and  2021,  and  the  related  statements  of  activities,  functional 
expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In  our  opinion,  the  accompanying  financial  statements  present  fairly,  in  all  material  respects,  the 
financial position of the Foundation as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and 
its cash flows for the years then ended  in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted  in 
the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America  (GAAS) and  the standards applicable  to  financial audits contained  in Government Auditing 
Standards,  issued  by  the  Comptroller General  of  the United  States. Our  responsibilities  under  those 
standards  are  further  described  in  the  Auditor’s  Responsibilities  for  the  Audit  of  the  Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required  to be  independent of the Foundation and  to meet 
our other ethical responsibilities,  in accordance with  the relevant ethical requirements relating  to our 
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained  is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management  is  responsible  for  the preparation and  fair presentation of  these  financial statements  in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted  in  the United States of America and  for  the 
design,  implementation,  and  maintenance  of  internal  control  relevant  to  the  preparation  and  fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are issued. 

 

DRAFT



 

Page 2 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
(Continued) 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. In circumstances in which the auditor also has responsibility to express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control in conjunction with the audit of the financial statements, 
omit the following: “but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Foundation’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.” 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control‐related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

DRAFT



 

Page 3 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
(Continued) 

Supplementary Information 

Our  audits were  conducted  for  the  purpose  of  forming  an  opinion  on  the  financial  statements  as  a 
whole.  The  Schedule  of  Expenditures  of  Federal Awards  as  required  by  Title  2 U.S.  Code  of  Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 
statements.  Such  information  is  the  responsibility of management and was derived  from and  relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the  financial statements. The 
information  has  been  subjected  to  the  auditing  procedures  applied  in  the  audit  of  the  financial 
statements  and  certain  additional  procedures,  including  comparing  and  reconciling  such  information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to 
the  financial  statements  themselves,  and  other  additional  procedures  in  accordance  with  auditing 
standards  generally  accepted  in  the  United  States  of  America.  In  our  opinion,  the  Schedule  of 
Expenditures  of  Federal  Awards  is  fairly  stated  in  all material  respects,  in  relation  to  the  financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In  accordance  with  Government  Auditing  Standards,  we  have  also  issued  our  report  dated  
DATE, on our consideration of the Foundation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is  an  integral  part  of  an  audit  performed  in  accordance  with  Government  Auditing  Standards  in 
considering the Foundation’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
AGT CPAs & Advisors 
Redding, California 
DATE 

DRAFT



 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
 

Page 5 

June 30, 2022 2021

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 22,490,752$        26,709,473$       
Cash‐client trust funds (Note 4) 709,102                694,905               
Corporate bonds 98,070                  100,342               
Net receivable ‐ State Regional Center contracts (Note 5) 6,140,202             561,760               
Receivable ‐ Intermediate Care Facility providers 850,943                1,361,647            
Prepaid expenses 677,856                850,315               
Other assets 88,217                  118,784
Due from State ‐ accrued vacation leave benefits 1,582,008             1,438,840            
Due from State ‐ deferred rent 13,022,109          12,989,087         

TOTAL ASSETS 45,659,259$        44,825,153$       

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities
Accounts payable 27,848,045$        28,083,296$       
Accrued and other liabilities 2,292,932             1,383,812            
Accrued vacation leave benefits 1,582,008             1,438,840            
Deferred rent 13,022,109          12,989,087         
Unexpended client trust funds (Note 4) 709,102                694,905               

Total Liabilities 45,454,196          44,589,940         

Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 205,063                235,213               

Total Net Assets 205,063                235,213               

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 45,659,259$        44,825,153$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 
 

Page 6 

Years Ended June 30 2022 2021

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
State Regional Center contracts 298,460,983$      279,661,012$     
Intermediate Care Facility
supplemental services income 2,511,016             3,007,561

Intermediate Care Facility administrative fee 44,870                  58,987                 
Interest income 29,603                  76,063                 
Cares Act Provider Relief funds ‐                             552,273               
Donations and other income 204,179 299,317

Total Support and Revenue 301,250,651        283,655,213       

EXPENSES

Program services:
Client services 298,176,153        280,814,404       

Supporting services:
General and administrative 3,104,648             2,826,369            

Total Expenses 301,280,801        283,640,773       

Changes in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions (30,150)                 14,440                 

Net Assets ‐ Without Donor Restrictions ‐ Beginning of Year 235,213                220,773               

Net Assets ‐ Without Donor Restrictions ‐ End of Year 205,063$              235,213$             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

 
  DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
 

Page 7 

Program Supporting

Services Services

Client General and Total

Year Ended June 30, 2022 Services Administrative Expenses

Purchase of Services
Residential care facilities 103,355,109$      ‐$                           103,355,109$     
Day program 73,587,120          ‐                             73,587,120         
Other purchased services 83,225,592          ‐                             83,225,592         

Total Purchase of Services 260,167,821        ‐                             260,167,821       

Salaries and Related Expenses:
Salaries 21,778,949          1,484,188             23,263,137         
Employee health and retirement benefits 5,927,832             403,969                6,331,801            
Payroll taxes 308,211                21,004                  329,215               

Facility rent 4,466,666             448,546                4,915,212            
Equipment and facility maintenance 1,561,110             106,386                1,667,496            
Equipment purchases 1,419,766             96,754                  1,516,520            
General expenses 908,597                61,919                  970,516               
Contract/consulting services 592,968                40,409                  633,377               
Communication 510,942                34,820                  545,762               
Insurance 176,596                82,227                  258,823               
Office expenses 234,215                15,961                  250,176               
Legal fees ‐                             235,896                235,896               
Printing 114,808                7,824                    122,632               
Accounting fees ‐                             52,000                  52,000                 
Board expenses ‐                             12,222                  12,222                 
Travel 7,672                    523                        8,195                   

Total 298,176,153$      3,104,648$          301,280,801$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
 
 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
(Continued) 

Page 8 

Program Supporting

Services Services

Client General and Total

Year Ended June 30, 2021 Services Administrative Expenses

Purchase of Services
Residential care facilities 100,210,065$      ‐$                           100,210,065$     
Day program 73,514,399          ‐                             73,514,399         
Other purchased services 74,408,649          ‐                             74,408,649         

Total Purchase of Services 248,133,113        ‐                             248,133,113       

Salaries and Related Expenses:
Salaries 19,523,770          1,417,740             20,941,510         
Employee health and retirement benefits 5,282,017             383,560                5,665,577            
Payroll taxes 206,522                14,997                  221,519               

Facility rent 4,203,985             536,815                4,740,800            
General expenses 1,319,861             95,844                  1,415,705            
Equipment and facility maintenance 800,596                58,138                  858,734               
Communication 400,034                29,048                  429,082               
Equipment purchases 377,292                27,398                  404,690               
Insurance 126,893                62,062                  188,955               
Office expenses 172,168                12,504                  184,672               
Printing 133,707                9,710                    143,417               
Contract/consulting services 132,378                9,612                    141,990               
Legal fees ‐                             115,537                115,537               
Accounting fees ‐                             51,200                  51,200                 
Travel 2,068                    151                        2,219                   
Board expenses ‐                             2,053                    2,053                   

Total 280,814,404$      2,826,369$          283,640,773$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
 

Page 9 

Years Ended June 30 2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets (30,150)$               14,440$               
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Net receivable ‐ State Regional Center contracts (5,578,442)           5,047,722            
Receivable ‐ Intermediate Care Facility providers 510,704                886,694               
Prepaid expenses 172,459                (253,212)              
Other assets 30,567                  15,786                 

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable  (235,251)               2,743,497            
Accrued and other liabilities 909,120                346,872               
Unexpended client trust funds 14,197                  176,265               

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities (4,206,796)           8,978,064            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments (50,000)                 (50,000)                
Proceeds from sale of investments 52,272                  50,597                 

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Investing Activities 2,272                    597                       

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (4,204,524)           8,978,661            

Cash and Cash Equivalents ‐ Beginning of Year 27,404,378          18,425,717         

Cash and Cash Equivalents ‐ End of Year 23,199,854$        27,404,378$       

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents 22,490,752$        26,709,473$       
Cash client trust funds 709,102                694,905               

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 23,199,854$        27,404,378$       

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH
Increase in due from state ‐ accrued vacation leave benefits (143,168)$            (119,832)$           
Increase in due from state ‐ deferred rent  (33,022)                 (120,651)              
Increase in accrued vacation leave benefits 143,168                119,832               
Increase in deferred rent 33,022                  120,651               

Total ‐$                           ‐$                          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Page 10 

1.  NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Activities   Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation (the Foundation), doing business 
as Harbor Regional Center, was incorporated on May 3, 1977, as a California nonprofit corporation for 
the purpose of operating Harbor Regional Center  and  related  activities. Prior  to  incorporation,  the 
Foundation was operated by a medical association. The Foundation was organized in accordance with 
the provisions of the Lanterman Developmental Disabilities Services Act (the Act) of the Welfare and 
Institutions  Code  of  the  State  of  California.  In  accordance with  the  Act,  the  Foundation  provides 
diagnostic  evaluations,  client  service  coordination,  and  lifelong  planning  services  for  persons with 
developmental disabilities and their families. The areas served include the Los Angeles County Health 
Districts of Bellflower, Harbor, Long Beach, and Torrance. 

The  Act  includes  governance  provisions  regarding  the  composition  of  the  Foundation's  board  of 
trustees. The Act states that the board shall be comprised of  individuals with demonstrated  interest 
in, or knowledge of, developmental disabilities, and other relevant characteristics, and requires that a 
minimum of 50% of the governing board be persons with developmental disabilities or their parents 
or legal guardians; and that no less than 25% of the members of the governing board shall be persons 
with developmental disabilities.  In addition, a member of a required advisory committee, composed 
of  persons  representing  the  various  categories  of  providers  from which  the  Foundation  purchases 
client  services,  shall  serve as a member of  the  regional  center board. To  comply with  the Act,  the 
Foundation's board of  trustees  includes persons with developmental disabilities, or  their parents or 
legal  guardians,  who  receive  services  from  the  Foundation  and  a  client  service  provider  of  the 
Foundation. 

The Foundation contracts with the State of California Department of Developmental Services (DDS) to 
operate  a  regional  center  for  individuals  with  developmental  disabilities  and  their  families.  The 
maximum expenditures under  the contract are  limited  to  the contract amount plus  interest earned 
and other  income. The Foundation  is  required  to maintain  records  in accordance with  the Regional 
Center Master Contract. 

In  the  event  the  DDS  finds  that  any  regional  center,  including  the  Foundation,  is  not  fulfilling  its 
contractual obligations, the DDS may make reasonable efforts to resolve the matter with the regional 
center or  to  renegotiate  its  contract with  the Foundation.  If  the DDS determines  that all efforts  to 
resolve the matter have been unsuccessful it may initiate specified procedures pursuant to California 
Welfare & Institutions Code §4635 to terminate its contract with the regional center. If necessary, to 
avoid disruption of  the service program,  the DDS may, pursuant  to California Welfare &  Institutions 
Code §4636, directly operate a regional center during the interim period between the termination of 
its contract with one governing board and  the assumption of operating  responsibility by a  regional 
center contract with another governing board. 

Basis of Accounting  The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis 
of  accounting.  Revenues  are  recognized  when  earned  and  expenses  are  recognized  when  the 
obligation  is  incurred.  Reimbursements  from  the  State  are  considered  earned  when  a  qualifying 
expense is incurred. 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 11 

Financial Statement Presentation  The Foundation’s financial statements are presented in accordance 
with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 958, 
Not‐for‐Profit Entities. Under FASB ASC Topic 958,  the Foundation  is  required  to  report  information 
regarding  its  financial position and activities according  to  two  classes of net assets based upon  the 
existence or absence of donor‐imposed restrictions, as follows: 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions:  Net assets available for use in general operations and 
not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions: Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor)  imposed 
restrictions. Some donor‐imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will 
be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor‐imposed 
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained 
in perpetuity. All other donor‐restricted contributions are reported as  increases  in net assets 
with  donor  restrictions,  depending  on  the  nature  of  the  restrictions.  When  a  restriction 
expires,  net  assets  with  donor  restrictions  are  reclassified  to  net  assets  without  donor 
restrictions  and  reported  in  the  statements  of  activities  as  net  assets  released  from 
restrictions.  As  of  June  30,  2022  and  2021,  the  Foundation  has  no  net  assets with  donor 
restrictions. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Foundation considers all 
highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
In accordance with the State Regional Center contracts, bank accounts are  in the name of both DDS 
and the Foundation. 

Significant Concentrations of Credit Risk   The Foundation maintains substantially all of  its cash and 
temporary  cash  investments  at  two  financial  institutions.  Accounts  at  the  financial  institution  are 
insured  by  the  Federal  Deposit  Insurance  Corporation  (FDIC)  up  to  $250,000.  At  times  the 
Foundation’s cash balances may exceed federally  insured  limits. The Foundation began to utilize the 
Insured Cash Sweep  (ICS)  service provided  through one of  the  financial  institutions. The  ICS  service 
places  excess  funds  into  demand  deposit  accounts  at  various  ICS Network member  institutions  in 
increments below the FDIC insurance maximum of $250,000. The Foundation has not experienced any 
loss and management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on such accounts. 

Corporate Bonds  The Foundation accounts for corporate bonds at fair value. Fair value is defined as 
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. Accounting standards have established a fair 
value hierarchy  that prioritizes  the  inputs  to  valuation  techniques used  to measure  fair  value.  The 
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices  in active markets for identical assets 
or  liabilities  (level  1 measurements)  and  the  lowest  priority  to measurements  involving  significant 
unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). 

   

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 12 

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 

• Level  1  inputs  are  quoted  prices  (unadjusted)  in  active markets  for  identical  assets  or 
liabilities that the Foundation has the ability to access at the measurement date. 

• Level  2  inputs  are  inputs  other  than quoted market prices  included  in  level  1  that  are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

Corporate bonds are financial instruments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the 
accompanying  statements of  financial position. Corporate bonds  are  generally  valued using pricing 
models maximizing  the use of observable  inputs  for similar securities. This  includes basing value on 
yields currently available to comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings. When quoted 
prices  are  not  available  for  identical  or  similar  bonds,  those  corporate  bonds  valued  under  a 
discounted  cash  flow  approach  that maximizes observable  inputs,  such  as  current  yields or  similar 
instruments, but  includes adjustments for certain risks that may not be observable, such as credit or 
liquidity. Therefore, the corporate bonds are classified within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

The  Foundation  held  $98,070  and  $100,342  at  June  30,  2022  and  2021,  respectively,  in  corporate 
bonds. 

State Regional Center Contract Receivables and Advances   Contracts receivable represent amounts 
due  from  the  State  for  reimbursement of expenditures made by  the  Foundation under  the  annual 
regional center contracts. The Foundation considers all amounts receivable under grant contracts to 
be collectible; accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts exists. 

The contract advance balance represents cash advances received by the Foundation under the annual 
regional  center  contracts.  Amounts  receivable  from  the  State  are  offset  against  advances  payable 
when the State notifies the Foundation that a right of offset exists. 

Receivable  ‐  Intermediate Care  Facility Providers    The Center  for Medicare  and Medicaid  Services 
(CMS)  approved  federal  financial  participation  in  the  funding  of  day  and  related  transportation 
services purchased by the Foundation for clients who reside in Intermediate Care Facilities (ICFs). CMS 
agreed that the day and related transportation services are part of the ICF service. Accordingly, all the 
Medicaid funding for the  ICF residents must go through the applicable  ICF provider. The Foundation 
receives a 1.5% administrative fee based on the funds received to cover the additional workload. 

DDS  has  directed  the  Foundation  to  prepare  billings  for  these  services  on  behalf  of  the  ICF’s  and 
submit a separate state claim  report  for  these services. The Foundation was directed  to  reduce  the 
amount of  its regular state claim to DDS by the dollar amount of these services. Reimbursement for 
these services will be received from ICFs. DDS advances the amount according to the state claim to the 
ICFs.  The  ICFs  are  then  required  to  pass  on  the  payments  received,  as  well  as  the  Foundation’s 
administrative  fee,  to  the Foundation within 30 days of  receipt of  funds  from  the State Controller’s 
Office. 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 13 

Prepaid Expenses  Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit the Foundation for periods 
beyond the current fiscal year are recorded as prepaid expenses. 

Equipment  Purchases    In  accordance  with  the  State  Regional  Center  contracts,  all  equipment 
purchased with contract  funds  is  the property of  the State. The Foundation  is  required  to maintain 
memorandum records of equipment purchases and dispositions. Equipment purchases are recorded 
as  supporting or program  service expenses when  they are  incurred. The  cost basis of  the property 
utilized by the Foundation and owned by the State was $1,190,893 and $1,427,037 at June 30, 2022 
and 2021, respectively. These balances include only the equipment that is sensitive or exceeds $5,000 
as required by System Award Management (SAM) guidelines. 

Accrued Vacation Leave Benefits   The Foundation has accrued a  liability  for vacation  leave benefits 
earned. However, such benefits are reimbursed under the state contract only when actually paid. The 
Foundation has also recorded a receivable from the state for the accrued leave benefits to reflect the 
future reimbursement of such benefits. 

Deferred  Rent    The  Foundation  leases  office  facilities  under  lease  agreements  that  are  subject  to 
scheduled acceleration of rental payments. The scheduled rent  increases are amortized evenly over 
the life of the lease. The deferred rent liability represents the difference between the cash payments 
made  and  the  amount  expensed  since  inception  of  the  lease.  The  Foundation  has  recorded  a 
receivable from the state to offset the deferred rent liability.  

Unexpended Client Trust Funds  The Foundation assumes a fiduciary relationship with certain clients 
who  receive  funds  from  private  and  governmental  sources,  including  the  Social  Security 
Administration and Veterans Administration. These funds are used primarily to offset clients' out‐of‐
home  placement  and  living  costs.  These  funds  are  held  in  a  separate  bank  account  and  interest 
earnings are credited to the clients’ balances. 

Revenue and Revenue Recognition The Foundation recognizes contributions when cash, securities or 
other assets; an unconditional promise  to give; or a notification of a beneficial  interest  is  received. 
Conditional promises  to give –  that  is,  those with a measurable performance or other barrier and a 
right of return – are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met. 

A significant portion of the Foundation’s revenue is derived from cost‐reimbursable federal and state 
contracts  and  grants,  which  are  conditioned  upon  certain  performance  requirements  and/or  the 
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when  the 
Foundation  has  incurred  expenditures  in  compliance  with  specific  contract  or  grant  provisions. 
Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are recorded as an advance and included 
with  the  Net  receivable  –  State  Regional  Center  contracts  balance  on  the  statement  of  financial 
position.  The  Foundation  received  cost‐reimbursable  grants  of  $81,412,231  and  $63,632,346  that 
have  not  been  recognized  in  revenue  at  June  30,  2022  and  2021,  respectively,  because  qualifying 
expenditures  have  not  yet  been  incurred.  The  advance  payment  is  netted  against  state  contract 
receivables of $87,552,433 and recognized  in the statement of financial position as Net receivable – 
State Regional Center contracts of $6,140,202 and $561,760 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

   

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 14 

Federal Grants  The Foundation received two federal grants as of June 30, 2022, as follows: 

U.S. Department of Education:   The Foundation  is a sub‐recipient  to State of California DDS 
with regard to the Special Education Grants for  Infants and Families, which provides funding 
for early intervention services for infants and toddlers, through age 3, as authorized by Public 
Law 102‐119. Revenue received from this program was $884,517 and $882,940 for the years 
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and is included in State Regional Center contracts 
revenue on the statement of activities. 

U.S Department of Health and Human Services:  The Foundation is a recipient of the CARES Act 
Provider  Relief  Fund  made  available  to  providers  of  health  care  services  and  supports, 
including agencies serving people with developmental disabilities. Allowable expenses under 
the Provider Relief  Fund must be used  to prevent, prepare  for and  respond  to  coronavirus 
(COVID‐19),  and  for  related  expenses  or  lost  revenues  attributable  to  COVID‐19.  Funding 
cannot  be  used where  another  source  has  reimbursed  or  is  obligated  to  reimburse  these 
expenses or  losses. Revenue received  from this program was $0 and $552,273  for the years 
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and is included on the statement of activities. 

Revenue Concentration  State Regional Center contract revenue is revenue received from the State in 
accordance with the Lanterman Act. 99% of the Foundation’s revenue is derived from this source. 

Allocation of Expenses   The statement of functional expenses allocates expenses for all funds to the 
program and supporting service categories based on a direct cost basis for purchase of services and 
salaries and related expenses. Operating expenses are allocated based on a percentage of salaries and 
related expenses per category to total salaries and related expenses, except for certain expenses that 
are designated as program or supporting services. 

Income Taxes  The Foundation has received tax‐exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue  Code,  and  Section  23701(d)  of  the  California  Revenue  and  Taxation  Code,  and  has  been 
classified  as  an  organization  that  is  not  a  private  foundation  under  Section  509(a)  of  the  Internal 
Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the financial statements. 

The Foundation accounts  for  income  taxes  in accordance with  FASB ASC 740,  Income Taxes, which 
clarifies  the  accounting  for  uncertainty  in  income  taxes  and  how  an  uncertain  tax  position  is 
recognized  in  financial  statements.  The  Foundation  analyzes  tax  positions  taken  in  previously  filed 
returns and tax positions expected to be taken  in future returns. Based on this analysis, a  liability  is 
recorded  if  uncertain  tax  benefits  have  been  received.  The  Foundation’s  practice  is  to  recognize 
interest and penalties,  if any,  related  to uncertain  tax positions  in  the  tax expense. There were no 
uncertain tax positions  identified or related  interest and penalties recorded as of June 30, 2022 and 
2021, and the Foundation does not expect this to change significantly over the next 12 months. 

   

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 15 

Concentration of Labor   The Foundation retains approximately 80% of  its  labor force through Social 
Services Union, Local 721, Services Employees International Union (Union). This labor force is subject 
to a collective bargaining agreement and, as such, renegotiation of such agreement could expose the 
Foundation  to an  increase  in hourly costs and work stoppages.  In  July 2022, negotiations concluded 
between the Foundation and the Union, extending the current agreement to June 30, 2025.  

Use  of  Estimates  and  Assumptions    The  preparation  of  financial  statements  in  conformity  with 
generally accepted accounting principles  requires management  to make estimates and assumptions 
that  affect  certain  reported  amounts  and  disclosures. Accordingly,  actual  results  could  differ  from 
these estimates. 

Recently  Issued Accounting Pronouncements    In February 2016,  the FASB  issued ASU No. 2016‐02, 
Leases (Topic 842), which requires  lessees to recognize  leases on the balance sheet and disclose key 
information  about  leasing arrangements. The new  standard establishes a  right‐of‐use  (ROU) model 
that  requires  a  lessee  to  recognize  a  ROU  asset  and  lease  liability  on  the  statement  of  financial 
position  for most  leases with a  term  longer  than 12 months.  Leases will be  classified as  finance or 
operating, with classification affecting the pattern and classification of the expense recognition in the 
consolidated statement of activities.  In May 2020, the FASB  issued ASU 2020‐05, which delayed the 
effective  date  of  the  standard  to  annual  reporting  periods  beginning  after  December  15,  2021. 
Management is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on its financial statements. 

Subsequent Events  Management has evaluated subsequent events through DATE, the date on which 
the financial statements were available to be issued. 

2.  LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting 
their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following: 

June 30 2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents 22,490,752$        26,709,473$       
Net Receivable ‐ State Regional Center contracts 6,140,202             561,760               
Receivable ‐ Intermediate Care Facilities 850,943                1,361,647            

Total 29,481,897$        28,632,880$       

                       

Each regional center submits a monthly purchase of service expenditure projection to DDS, beginning 
in December of each fiscal year. By February 1st of each year, DDS allocates to all regional centers no 
less than 100% of the enacted budget for Operations and 99% of the enacted budget for Purchase of 
Service. To do this, it may be necessary to amend the Foundation's contract in order to allocate funds 
made available from budget augmentations and to move funds among regional centers. In the event 
that DDS determines that a regional center has insufficient funds to meet its contractual obligations, 
DDS  shall  make  best  efforts  to  secure  additional  funds  and/or  provide  the  regional  center  with 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 16 

regulatory  and  statutory  relief.  The  contract with DDS  allows  for  adjustments  to  the  Foundation's 
allocations and for the payment of claims up to two years after the close of each fiscal year. 

In addition, the Foundation maintains a revolving note (Note 6) to manage cash flow requirements as 
needed should there be delays in reimbursement for expenditures from DDS. 

3.  FUNDING LIMITS 

The Foundation contracts with DDS to operate a regional center to provide services and support for 
individuals with developmental disabilities and their families. Contracts are open for the current and 
two prior fiscal years as follows: 

Contract Cumulative Unexpended

Fiscal Years Ended Amount Expenses Balance

June 30, 2022 329,106,392$      291,123,550$      37,982,842$       
June 30, 2021 289,000,034$      279,342,653$      9,657,381$         
June 30, 2020 261,736,418$      257,197,107$      4,539,311$         

 

Management monitors the unexpended balance annually to avoid overspending the contract limits. A 
majority  of  the  unexpended  balance  is  related  to  purchase  of  service  for  client  services  and  this 
amount  could  change due  to delinquent billings. Management believes  that  total  expenditures  for 
each open year will not exceed the final approved State contract amount. 

   

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 17 

4.  UNEXPENDED CLIENT TRUST FUNDS 

The Foundation functions as custodian for the receipt of certain governmental payments and resulting 
disbursements made on behalf of the Foundation's clients. These cash balances are segregated from 
the  operating  cash  accounts  of  the  Foundation  and  are  restricted  for  client  support.  Since  the 
Foundation is acting as an agent in processing these transactions, no revenue or expense is reflected 
on the accompanying statement of activities. 

The following is a summary of operating cash activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021: 

Years Ended June 30 2022 2021

Social security and other client support received 2,901,634$          2,753,942$         
Residential care and other disbursements 2,900,950             2,541,027            

Support Over (Under) Disbursements 684                        212,915               

Changes to reconcile support under disbursements to 
net cash used in support and care activities:
(Decrease) increase in receivable from state and federal agencies 25,346                  (25,044)                
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to the Foundation (11,833)                 (11,606)                

Subtotal 13,513                  (36,650)                

Net Cash Provided for (Used In) Support and Care Activities 14,197                  176,265               

Cash ‐ Client Trust Funds ‐ Beginning of Year 694,905                518,640               

Cash ‐ Client Trust Funds ‐ End of Year 709,102$              694,905$             

 

5.  NET RECEIVABLE – STATE REGIONAL CENTER CONTRACTS 

Contracts receivable represent amounts due from the State for reimbursement of expenditures made 
by  the  Foundation under  the  annual Regional Center  contracts. Advances  represent  cash  advances 
received by the Foundation under the annual Regional Center contracts. Amounts receivable from the 
State are offset against advances payable when the State notifies the Foundation that a right of offset 
exists. 

Years Ended June 30 2022 2021

Contracts receivable 87,552,433$        64,194,106$       

Less: Contract advances (81,412,231)         (63,632,346)        

Net Receivable ‐ State Regional Center Contracts  $         6,140,202   $            561,760 

 
The Foundation considers all amounts receivable under grant contracts to be collectible; accordingly, 
no allowance for doubtful accounts exists. 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 18 

6.  SHORT‐TERM BORROWINGS 

The  Foundation  began  the  year with  a  $43,000,000  line  of  credit with Opus  Bank,  secured  by  an 
interest in all personal property and assets of the Foundation. Interest on the outstanding balance is 
payable monthly at the one‐month secure overnight financing rate (SOFR) plus an interest rate margin 
of 2.15%, adjusting daily, with a floor rate of 3.00%. On May 24, 2022, the Foundation extended their 
line of credit with Pacific Premier Bank to expire June 30, 2023. Effective July 1, 2022, the  limit was 
increased  to $45,000,000. No  amount was drawn during  the  fiscal  years ended  June 30, 2022  and 
2021, nor was any amount outstanding on the line of credit as of June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

7.  LEASE COMMITMENTS  

The Foundation is obligated under operating leases for facilities and equipment with expiration dates 
through November 30, 2039. The  facility  leases generally require the  lessee  to pay all maintenance, 
insurance,  and  other  operating  expenses,  and  are  subject  to  periodic  adjustment  based  on  price 
indexes or contract stipulated annual rate increases. 

Future minimum payments under these leases are as follows: 

Less: Expected

Sublease

Years Ending June 30 Del Harbor Other Lessor Income Equipment Total

2023 3,374,643$          1,405,393$          (88,099)$               175,093$              4,867,030$         
2024 3,414,977             1,447,602             (55,133)                 29,182                  4,836,628            
2025 3,456,231             1,491,000             (4,605)                   ‐                             4,942,626            
2026 3,486,793             1,535,813             ‐                             ‐                             5,022,606            
2027 3,518,272             1,581,747             ‐                             ‐                             5,100,019            
Thereafter 45,316,039          24,073,110          ‐                             ‐                             69,389,149         

Total  $       62,566,955   $       31,534,665   $           (147,837)  $            204,275   $       94,158,058 

 
Total  rental expense was $5,151,722 and $4,962,084  for  the years ended  June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 

Related Party 

The  Foundation  is  leasing  its main  office  facilities  from  Del  Harbor  Foundation  (Del  Harbor).  Del 
Harbor is a separately incorporated California nonprofit corporation formed to facilitate and augment 
the  coordination of  services and programs of  the  Foundation or  those which benefit  clients of  the 
Foundation  and  shares  common management with  the  Foundation.  The  Foundation paid  rent  and 
operating expense reimbursement  to Del Harbor of $3,368,989 and $3,293,851  for  the years ended 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
 
 
 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 19 

8.  CONTINGENCIES AND LITIGATION 

Contingencies 

The  Foundation  is  dependent  on  continued  funding  provided  by  the  DDS  to  operate  and  provide 
services for its clients. The Foundation's contract with the DDS provides funding for services under the 
Lanterman Act.  In the event that the operations of the Foundation result  in a deficit position at the 
end of any contract year, the DDS may reallocate surplus funds within the state of California system to 
supplement  the  Foundation's  funding.  Should  a  system‐wide  deficit  occur,  the DDS  is  required  to 
report to the governor of California and the appropriate fiscal committee of the State Legislature and 
recommend actions to secure additional funds or reduce expenditures. The DDS's recommendations 
are subsequently reviewed by the governor and the Legislature and a decision is made with regard to 
specific actions. 

In accordance with the terms of the DDS contract, an audit may be performed by an authorized state 
representative. Should such an audit disclose any unallowable costs, the Foundation may be liable to 
the state for reimbursement of such costs. In the opinion of the Foundation's management, the effect 
of any disallowed costs would be immaterial to the financial statements at June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

The  Foundation  has  elected  to  finance  its  unemployment  insurance  using  the  prorated  cost‐
of‐benefits  method.  Under  this  method,  the  Foundation  is  required  to  reimburse  the  state  of 
California for benefits paid to its former employees. 

Legal Proceedings 

The Foundation is subject to various legal proceedings and claims arising in the ordinary course of its 
business. While  the ultimate outcome of  these matters  is difficult  to predict, management believes 
that  the  ultimate  resolution  of  these  matters  will  not  have  a  material  adverse  effect  on  the 
Foundation's financial position or activities. 

9.  COMMITMENTS 

The  Foundation  contracts  with  various  providers  of  services  for  the  developmentally  disabled. 
Significant unpaid commitments under these contracts as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, were $2,159,144 
and $2,109,486, respectively. 
   

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 20 

10.  RETIREMENT PLAN 

Effective  July 1, 2004,  the Foundation  restated  its  retirement plan and adopted a prototype profit‐
sharing  plan with  a  401(k)  feature. All  employees  are  eligible  to  enter  the  plan  immediately  upon 
employment. The Foundation makes non‐elective contributions to the plan on behalf of participants. 
These  contributions are based on a percentage of  compensation earned by participants during  the 
plan  year.  Employee  contributions  are  not  required  and  are  entirely  voluntary.  Participants  can 
contribute up to the federal maximum limit. Beginning November 2016 the Foundation matches 50% 
of a participant's contributions up to the first 6% of salary, or a maximum employer amount of 3% of 
salary. Loans are permitted, subject to the terms of the plan document and applicable contract. 

The total employer retirement expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $3,113,008 
and $2,627,084, respectively. 

In addition, effective June 1, 2005, the Foundation established a 457(b) deferred compensation plan. 
The Foundation does not contribute to this plan; however, employees can contribute to this plan  in 
addition to the retirement plan. Loans are not permitted. 
 

DRAFT



 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION 

 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Page 22 

Assistance

Federal Grantor/Pass‐Through Contract Listing Pass‐Through Disbursements/

Grantor/Program Title Year Number Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Passed Through State of California
Department of Developmental Services ‐
Special Education ‐ Grants for Infants and
Families with Disabilities (Part C) 21/22 84.181A H181A210037 884,517$                 

Total U.S. Department of Education 884,517                   

U.S DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Provider Relief Fund 20/21 93.498 N/A 552,273                   

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 552,273                   

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 1,436,790$              

 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying  schedule of expenditures of  federal awards  includes  the  federal award activity of  the 
Foundation under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2022. The information in 
this schedule  is presented  in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements  for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because this schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the 
Foundation, it is not intended to, and does not, present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash 
flows of the Foundation. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures 
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Part C expenditures are based on state contract budget 
allocations. 

Indirect Cost Rate 

The Foundation has elected not  to use  the 10% de minimis  indirect cost  rate allowed under  the Uniform 
Guidance. 

 

DRAFT



 

 

OTHER REPORTS SECTION 

DRAFT



 

Page 24 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS  
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN  
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation 
Torrance, California 

We  have  audited  in  accordance with  auditing  standards  generally  accepted  in  the  United  States  of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained  in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued  by  the  Comptroller  General  of  the  United  States,  the  financial  statements  of  Harbor 
Developmental Disabilities Foundation dba Harbor Regional Center, a California nonprofit corporation 
(the  Foundation), which  comprise  the  statement  of  financial  position  as  of  June  30,  2022,  and  the 
related statements of activities,  functional expenses, and cash  flows  for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated DATE. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In  planning  and  performing  our  audit  of  the  financial  statements,  we  considered  the  Foundation’s 
internal control over  financial  reporting  (internal control) as a basis  for designing procedures  that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but  not  for  the  purpose  of  expressing  an  opinion  on  the  effectiveness  of  the  Foundation’s  internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on  the effectiveness of  the  Foundation’s  internal 
control. 

A  deficiency  in  internal  control  exists  when  the  design  or  operation  of  a  control  does  not  allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect  and  correct,  misstatements  on  a  timely  basis.  A  material  weakness  is  a  deficiency,  or  a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the Foundation’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected 
on a  timely basis. A  significant deficiency  is a deficiency, or a  combination of deficiencies,  in  internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section  and was  not  designed  to  identify  all  deficiencies  in  internal  control  that might  be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any 
deficiencies  in  internal  control  that  we  consider  to  be  material  weaknesses.  However,  material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

DRAFT



 

Page 25 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS  
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN  
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
(Continued) 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we  performed  tests  of  its  compliance with  certain  provisions  of  laws, 
regulations,  contracts,  and  grant  agreements,  noncompliance  with  which  could  have  a  direct  and 
material effect on  the  financial  statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with  those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our  tests disclosed no  instances of noncompliance or other matters  that are required  to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The  purpose  of  this  report  is  solely  to  describe  the  scope  of  our  testing  of  internal  control  and 
compliance and  the  results of  that  testing, and not  to provide an opinion on  the effectiveness of  the 
Foundation’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards  in considering  the Foundation’s  internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
AGT CPAs & Advisors 
Redding, California 
DATE  DRAFT



 

Page 26 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR  
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Directors 
Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation 
Torrance, California 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation’s, (the Foundation) compliance with the 
types  of  compliance  requirements  described  in  the OMB  Compliance  Supplement  that  could  have  a 
direct and material effect on the Foundation’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
The Foundation’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and its 
federal award programs. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our  responsibility  is  to express an opinion on  compliance  for each of  the Foundation’s major  federal 
program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America;  the  standards  applicable  to  financial  audits  contained  in  Government  Auditing  Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 
of  Federal  Regulations  Part  200,  Uniform  Administrative  Requirements,  Cost  Principles,  and  Audit 
Requirements  for  Federal  Awards  (Uniform  Guidance).  Those  standards  and  the  Uniform  Guidance 
require  that  we  plan  and  perform  the  audit  to  obtain  reasonable  assurance  about  whether 
noncompliance with the  types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit  includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence  about  the  Foundation’s  compliance  with  those  requirements  and  performing  such  other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Foundation’s compliance. 

 

DRAFT



 

Page 27 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR  
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
(Continued) 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In  our  opinion,  the  Foundation  complied,  in  all  material  respects,  with  the  types  of  compliance 
requirements  referred  to  above  that  could  have  a  direct  and  material  effect  on  its  major  federal 
program for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Foundation is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over  compliance  with  the  types  of  compliance  requirements  referred  to  above.  In  planning  and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered  the Foundation’s  internal control over compliance 
with  the  types  of  requirements  that  could  have  a  direct  and material  effect  on  the major  federal 
program  to  determine  the  auditing  procedures  that  are  appropriate  in  the  circumstances  for  the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on  the effectiveness of  internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency  in  internal control over compliance exists when  the design or operation of a control over 
compliance  does  not  allow  management  or  employees,  in  the  normal  course  of  performing  their 
assigned  functions,  to  prevent,  or  detect  and  correct,  noncompliance  with  a  type  of  compliance 
requirement  of  a  federal  program  on  a  timely  basis.  A material  weakness  in  internal  control  over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of 
a  federal program will not be prevented, or detected  and  corrected, on  a  timely basis. A  significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph  of  this  section  and was  not  designed  to  identify  all  deficiencies  in  internal  control  over 
compliance  that might  be material  weaknesses  or  significant  deficiencies. We  did  not  identify  any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

   

DRAFT



 

Page 28 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR  
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
(Continued) 

The purpose of  this  report on  internal control over compliance  is  solely  to describe  the  scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance, and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
AGT CPAs & Advisors 
Redding, California 
DATE 
 

DRAFT



 

 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS SECTION 

 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
June 30, 2022 

Page 30 

SECTION I 
SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Are any material weaknesses identified? No
Are any significant deficiencies identified? None reported

Is any noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal control over major programs:
Are any material weaknesses identified? No
Are any significant deficiencies identified? None reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major program: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance? No

Identification of major programs:
Assistance Listing No. 84.181A Special Education – Grants for Infants and Families

with Disabilities (Part C)
Assistance Listing No. 93.498 Provider Relief Fund

Threshold for distinguishing types A and B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low‐risk auditee? Yes

 

SECTION II FINDINGS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

None 

SECTION III FINDINGS 
FEDERAL AWARDS AUDIT 

None 

 

DRAFT



Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
June 30, 2022 

Page 31 

None 

DRAFT



 
 

HDDF BOARD DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
December 14, 2022 

MINUTES 
 
ATTENDEES Present: ATTENDESS Absent: 
Ann Lee, Board Vice-President Chris Patay, Board President 
David Gauthier, Board Secretary Dr. Jim Flores, Board Treasurer 
Joe Czarske, Past President  
Patrick Ruppe, Executive Director  
Jennifer Lauro, Executive Assistant   

 
The Board Development Committee met via zoom on December 14, 2022 regarding the 
following items:  
 
1. Board Development Committee meeting schedule for 2023 
 
2. Trustee terms 
 
3. Board Recruitment needs 
 
4. Potential Candidate status 
 

5. FY 2022-23 Officer Terms 
 

6. FY 2023-24 Recruiting needs 
 

The next meeting of the Board Development Committee is scheduled for 3:00 pm on January 
11, 2023.     

 



 

[Type here] 
 

Pa
ge

1 

Harbor Regional Center 
Client Advisory Committee 

Noember 12, 2022 via ZOOM 

Minutes 
Members Present: Debbie Howard, Kelly Sutton,  

HRC Staff Present:  Judy Taimi 

Other: Janelle Reyes (Lifesteps Foundation), Dee Prescott (Easter Seals) 

Call to Order & Minutes Approved  

Meeting was called to order and commenced at 1:10 p.m.  

CAC Member Updates 

 We discussed our calendar for 2023. The committee would like to keep the 
schedule the same on a quarterly basis beginning in February. We will revisit the 
days that the committee can meet when more of the committee members are 
present. Kelly will put together the calendar for the meeting and will send it out 
to the members. We will continue our meetings via zoom until we are able to 
meet in person. The committee will also work on their efforts to recruit new 
members to the committee.  

HRC Updates  

Dee Prescott from Easter Seals provided a presentation on their agency’s virtual 
community.  

• This virtual community platform has the following tools that the individual’s 
served by HRC can access all of their events online. This is a one-stop shop 
for social recreational activities, meet-up group, learning new skills by 
taking classes. Some of the tools or icons available are:  

o Live events 
o Chat Rooms 
o Classes offered during the day by the individuals we serve 



 

[Type here] 
 

Pa
ge

2 

o Create community to connect 
• Person-centered creation and design 

o Create the content 
o Find what they are interested in so they can participate in what 

works for them 
• Virtual archives are also available to the participants to access 
• The committee members expressed that this would be something they will 

be interested in accessing for themselves as the pandemic continues to 
linger, they can participate with others online and it’s a program that is 
geared towards their needs.  

The team would like for a presentation for next CAC meeting: Vincente Miles, 
Emergency Preparedness. 
 
Adjournment  

Meeting adjourned at 2:00 PM. 

 
 



 
 

Client Services Committee | 
Meeting date | time November 22, 2022 | 6 PM      | Meeting location ZOOM 

ATTENDEES Guadalupe Nolasco (Parent) 
Gordon Cardona (Individual) 

  
  
  
  
 

Lucy Paz (Interpreter) 
Fu-Tien Chiou (Parent) 

Judy Taimi (HRC Staff) 
 

AGENDA TOPICS 

Time allotted | 6 PM to 7 PM | Agenda topic Review of New HRC Policies 

• Socialization, Leisure/Recreational Services, Camping Services, Educational Services and 
Non-Medical Therapies Policy 

o We reviewed the definitions of this policy and how it pertains to the individuals 
HRC serves  
 Promotes community integration and self-advocacy training  
 May include but not limited to: swimming, sports, clubs, dance lessons, 

tutoring services, martial arts, creative arts, music therapy, art therapy, 
equestrian therapy, day and overnight camp or community integration 
activities.  

 Educational services referring to those services typically provided by school 
districts for school aged children.  

o HRC’s philosophy regarding these services that are available in typical social 
recreational community programs may not otherwise available to individuals with a 
disability. Services funded through the regional center should not replace or 
interfere with the time that families spend together in social activities. Funding for 
educational services should not be used for childcare.  

o Policy 
 Efforts were made to access typical programs but the program does not meet the 

individual’s needs. The identified program is in an environment where typically 
developing individuals are present. The frequency/duration/cost of service is 
reasonable in comparison to typically developing individuals. Services are delivered 
within the boundaries of the State of California. Clear documentation that a publicly 
funded developmental/educational program for a child is unavailable.  



Page 2 

 IPP team identified the social recreational need. The IPP team agrees to this 
additional support for the individual as services are intermittent/periodic and not 
continuous. Services are to be provided once per quarter during the IPP year.  

• Personal Assistance/CARE Services Policy 
o We reviewed the definition of this policy and how it pertains to the individuals HRC serves 

 Providing an individual with appropriate and direct care or supervision in their 
preferred home and community settings. May also include 1:1 supervision/support 
in-home and community settings for an individual with significant safety, social 
deficits or behavioral challenges. May assist with community integration for 
adolescent and adult individuals.  

o HRC’s philosophy for this service is that personal assistance/care is not intended to meet the 
Respite need of a caregiver and is more appropriate to address the direct care and 
supervision needs of the individual regardless of a caregivers need for an intermittent 
break. For children, the need for personal assistance/care services is seen as a typical 
parental responsibility. Should not be authorized for the sole purpose of skill development.  

o Policy 
 Generic supports are to be accessed such as In-Home Support Services (IHSS). 

Interim funding may be considered while a plan to explore and pursue publicly 
funded resources is being implemented. The assessed need has been identified by the 
IPP team and the assessment tool was utilized to capture the need for the care and 
supervision required. May be used for community integration with specific time 
limited goals in an individual’s IPP.  Clear documentation in the individual’s IPP 
that a family for a minor child is not able to meet all or part of the required 
specialized care and supervision due to the severity and intensity of the disability. 
Exceptions can be granted when the IPP team establishes a need to authorize services 
outside of the described criteria.  

 
 

• The agenda for the meeting will be sent to the committee at least 1 week prior to the 
meeting.  
 

 
 

Next Meeting: January 24, 2023 at 6 PM via ZOOM 
 
 



HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER 
Self Determination Advisory Committee 

Meeting Minutes 
November 2, 2022 

 
  

Opening:  
The regular meeting of HRC Self Determination Advisory Committee was called to order at 
6:00PM on Wednesday, November 2, 2022 via Zoom. Quorum was not established.   
 
Committee Member Present    
Miriam Kang, Parent 
Deaka McClain, Client  
 
HRC Staff Present 
Antoinette Perez – Director of Children’s Services  
Judy Taimi- Director of Adult Services 
Jessica Sanchez- Participant Choice Specialist 
Bryan Sanchez- Participant Choice Specialist  
Aurelio Lopez- Participant Choice Specialist 
Johnny Granados- Client Service Manager   
Patrick Ruppe, HRC Executive Director  
 
SCDD Staff Present 
Albert Feliciano  
 
Abbreviations 
HRC: Harbor Regional Center                                           
IF: Independent Facilitator 
PCP: Person-Centered Plan                                               
SCDD: State Council on Developmental Disabilities                     
SDP: Self-Determination Program                                      
DVU: Disability Voices United  
FMS: Financial Management Service  
DDS: Department of Developmental Services  
RFP: Request for Proposal 
SDAC: Self-Determination Local Advisory Committee  
 
Visitors  
Naomi Hagel, Phoenix Facilitation 
Alex Garzon, Phoenix Facilitation 
Abraham Flores Rojo, Phoenix Facilitation 
Helen Reese, Phoenix Facilitation 
Santiago Villalobos, Phoenix Facilitation  
Jamie Van Dusen, Department of Developmental Services  
Monserrat Palacios, Department of Developmental Services  
Danielle Alvarado, Independent Facilitator 
Carla Lehmann, Independent Facilitator 
Reiko Umeda, Independent Facilitator  



HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER 
Self Determination Advisory Committee 

Meeting Minutes 
November 2, 2022 

 
  

Tamara Pauly, Independent Facilitator  
Yolanda Gomez, Parent  
John Larsen, Parent  
Garret Ackermann, Homies  
Lucy Paz, Interpreter  
Wendy 
 
Welcome:  
Introductions of committee members and guests via the chat. Attendees informed the meeting 
would be short due to not meeting quorum. SDAC meeting is to be held on December 7th to vote 
on implementation funds, if quorum is confirmed ahead of time.  
 
Approval of Minutes: 
October 5, 2022 minutes were not posted for review due to not meeting quorum.  
  
Harbor Regional Center Monthly Updates: 
Jessica Sanchez briefly presented SDP data in a poster format called “Self-Determination 
Program Harbor Regional Center”. Presentation shared via Zoom. 
 

o October 2022 Updates  
 Total PCPs: 21 Soft Rollout & 67 Open Enrollment  
 Certified Budgets: 34 Soft Rollout & 116 Open Enrollment 
 Spending Plan: 29 Soft Rollout & 84 Open Enrollment 
 Live Clients: 113  

o Questions/Comments: 
 No questions were asked.  

 
o Fair Hearings:   

 No updates with fair hearing at this time.  
 

o RFP update: Phoenix Facilitation 
 Owner of Phoenix, Naomi Hagel, provided overview of services 

provided. Introduced email (hrc@gophoenix.org) and website for 
accessing Phoenix. Self Advocate and SDP participant, Santiago 
Villalobos, shared his experience.  

Partner Updates: 
Office of Clients and Rights Advocacy – Johnanthony Alaimo 

 No updates were shared.  
 

 
 
 



HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER 
Self Determination Advisory Committee 

Meeting Minutes 
November 2, 2022 

 
  

SCDD- Albert Feliciano  
 Update regarding vacancy was shared, have received applications. 
 Membership committee to meet in December, HHRC continues to share 

flyer regarding vacancy.  
 SDP statewide orientations will resume in November. Can sign up via 

SCDD website.  
 Trainings continue to be shared on Mondays. Next topic will cover 

bullying.  
 
Statewide Updates: 

 No updates at this time.  
 

Public Comments:  
 IF asked if she could get paid via Option A if transition lasts past 2/1/23. 

HRC clarified that there is enough time now to be vendored for 099 
services, as after 2/1/23 there will only be one payment method. IF will 
be paid out for work done up to 2/1/23.  

 IF asked about vendorization issues. HRC clarified difference between Z 
codes and vendor codes.  

 Another IF shared other RC’s are holding trainings for IF’s regarding 099 
services. HRC shared they are open to conducting similar meetings.  

 Chat in question asked about 099 services and transition support services. 
HRC provided clarification of services.  
 

Next meeting:  December 7, 2022 via Zoom 6PM – 8PM  
 
Adjournment, Conclusion 
Meeting was adjourned at 6:32 PM.  
Minutes submitted by Bryan Sanchez 
 



HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER 
Self Determination Advisory Committee 

Meeting Minutes 
December 7, 2022 

 
  

Opening:  
The special meeting of HRC Self Determination Advisory Committee was called to order at 
6:00PM on Wednesday, December 7, 2022 via Zoom. Quorum was established.   
 
Committee Member Present    
Rosalinda Garcia, Parent 
Miriam Kang, Parent 
Deaka McClain, Client  
David Oster, Client  
Patricia Jones, Client  
Sunghee Park, Parent, IF  
Juliana Martinez, Parent  
Johnanthony Alaimo, Office of Client Rights Advocacy   
 
 
HRC Staff Present 
Antoinette Perez – Director of Children’s Services  
Judy Taimi- Director of Adult Services 
Jessica Sanchez- Participant Choice Specialist 
Bryan Sanchez- Participant Choice Specialist  
Aurelio Lopez- Participant Choice Specialist 
Johnny Granados- Client Service Manager   
 
SCDD Staff Present 
Albert Feliciano  
 
Abbreviations 
HRC: Harbor Regional Center                                           
IF: Independent Facilitator 
PCP: Person-Centered Plan                                               
SCDD: State Council on Developmental Disabilities                     
SDP: Self-Determination Program                                      
DVU: Disability Voices United  
FMS: Financial Management Service  
DDS: Department of Developmental Services  
RFP: Request for Proposal 
SDAC: Self-Determination Local Advisory Committee  
 
Visitors  
Naomi Hagel, Phoenix Facilitation 
Alex Garzon, Phoenix Facilitation 
Abraham Flores Rojo, Phoenix Facilitation 
Helen Reese, Phoenix Facilitation 



HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER 
Self Determination Advisory Committee 

Meeting Minutes 
December 7, 2022 

 
  

Santiago Villalobos, Phoenix Facilitation  
Jamie Van Dusen, Department of Developmental Services  
Reiko Umeda, Independent Facilitator  
Tamara Pauly, Independent Facilitator  
Shelia Jordan Jones, Independent 
Yolanda Gomez, Parent  
Aquilina Castellanos 
Ivon Muñiz, parent 
Tomasa Mendez 
Alex, Oxford Healthcare  
Miriam 
Olivia 
Maria Poblete  
Sue Gavin 
Gaby, parent 
Lucy Paz, Interpreter  
Wendy 
 
Welcome:  
Introductions of committee members and guests via the chat. Attendees were informed the 
meeting would be short as the purpose of meeting was to approve minutes and vote on 2021-
2022 implementation funds.  
 
Approval of Minutes: 
July 2022 – November 2022 minutes were posted for review and approval. Minutes were 
approved.  
 
Voting on Implementations Funds:  
Overview, updates, and information about Phoenix Facilitation was provided to the committee 
and attendees. Implementations were awarded to Phoenix Facilitation.  
 
Public Comment:  

 Phoenix Facilitation LLC will present more information next meeting.  
 
 

Next meeting:  January 4, 2023 via Zoom 6PM – 8PM  
 
Adjournment, Conclusion 
Meeting was adjourned at 6:32 PM.  
Minutes submitted by Bryan Sanchez 
 



Harbor Regional Center  
Service Provider Advisory Committee (SPAC) 
December 6, 2022 10:00 a.m.  
Virtual via Zoom Meeting  
 
 
Committee Participants 
  

Member Name Organization 
Angie Rodriguez SVS 
Paul Quiroz Cambrian Homecare 
Armand Garcia Life Steps Foundation 
Alex Saldana Oxford Services 
Amber Carey  Easter Seals 
Angela Quaglia Easter Seals Carson /Cota  
Angelica Real  Easter Seals 
April Stover Ability First 
Alyssa Reyes 24HR Homecare 
Ariel Elizarraras Dungarvin Norwalk 
Ben Espitia Goodwill Industries 
Beverly  
Christine Grant Dungarvin 
Christine Andrade Center for Learning Unlimited  
Catherine B. Integrated Life 
Carol M Canyon Verdc 
Corina De Leon Integrated Life 
Dee Prescott Easter Seals 
Diane Sanka Easter Seals 
Darlene Williams Ambitions CA 
Elizabeth Ho CBEM 
Elsa Vasquez Exceptional Children Foundation 
Erin Welch Cole Vocational Services Signal Hill 
Heather Ives Independent Focus 
Jasmin Cortes CVS Signal Hill 
Joahna Torres David’s Place 
Jordan Quenum Ability First 
Josephine Santos Unlimited Quest 
Kadie DiCarlo  
La Tasha Bellard Easter Seals Bellflower 
Lindsey Stone ICAN CA 
Lucy Tate David’s Place 
Melvin Randolph Westview Services 
Maria Ortiz Pathpoint 
Marina Margaryan Westview Services 
Marleen Lopez  

Nancy Langdon Canyon Verde 
Pat Ball Moneta Learning Center 
Patty Solorzano Oxford Services 



Priscilla Lin  
Sharon Oh Share Speech  
Ryan Reager CA. Mentor 
Shea Matherly ARC Long Beach 
Veronica Mendoza Arroyo Developmental Services 
Verretta Boatner CA. Mentor  
Yael Bridge  
Jesse Cantlay  

 
 
HRC Staff Participating 
 

Staff Name Title 
Heather Diaz Director of Community Services  
Patrick Ruppe Executive Director 
Mercedes Lowery Community Services Manager 
Steve Goclowski Clinical Services Manager 
Elizabeth Garcia-Moya  Community Services Manager 
Leticia Mendoza Dept. Assistant 
Judy Taimi Director of Adult Services 
Thao Mailloux Director of Information 
Ute Czemmel Controller 
Tes Castillo Assistant Controller 
LaWanna Blair Director of Early Childhood 
Mary Hernandez Director of Case Management Support Services 
Brenda Bane Provider Relations Specialist 
Lisa Hobart RN Consultant 
Princess Njuguna RN Consultant 
Maria Elena Walsh Manager Resource Center 

 
 
Call to Order  
Angie Rodriguez, Chair called the meeting at 10:05 a.m.  
 
Sub-Committee Updates 
Angie Rodriguez provided updates with the SPAC Chair Members. The groups recently hosted individual 
sub-committees meetings to discuss current issues and concerns. The challenges to hire and retain staff 
continues amongst providers.  The job fair recently hosted at HRC site for the public did not have the best 
turn out they hoped. Lindsey from ICAN is working to collaborate with El Camino for future job fairs 
also.  
 

• Darlene Williams –Residential service 
• Diane Sanka- Day Program 
• Lindsey Stone – Supported Employment service 
• Robert Turner- Supported Living service 
• Paul Quiroz –Support Services 
• Sharon Oh -Early Start service 

 



HRC Family Resource Center Update 
Maria Elena Walsh reminded providers that the resource center in Torrance and Long Beach office have 
many resource materials available to them to check out for their programs such as books, puzzles, videos 
etc. There is no longer a patron fee for providers. Maria Elena invites the committee to come take tour. 
 
SPAC Job Fair Update 
Brenda Bane provided update on last month SPAC Job Fair hosted at HRC site. Total of 15 provider 
agencies participated.  It was a great opportunity to network and build partnerships. They had a lower 
attendance than what they hoped to have. SVS obtained a few applicant resumes.  They hope for the next 
job fair they host will be a better visible location to the public and better outcome. Heather thanked the 
committee for all their efforts.   
 
Torrance Business Fair 
Lindsey from ICAN shared with the committee her current participation with the Torrance Business Fair, 
Torrance and Long Beach Chamber.  Encouraged the group get contact and get involved with their local 
officials to network.  ICAN recently received a grant through Janice Hahn office for a van lift to transport 
their coffee cart that clients run through SEP program.  
 
Transportation Returning to Traditional Services 
Brenda Bane provided update regarding Transportation and the recent provider meeting held. 
Transportation and day program providers looking forward to work together to get clients transported 
back to in person programs next year.  
 

• Roundtrip and Day Programs – December 1, 2022 at 10am 
• Reliable and Day Programs – December 6, 2022 at 2pm 
• Ideal and Day Programs – December 7, 2022 at 10am 
• Comfort and Day Programs – December 9, 2022 at 11am 

 
Alternative Services Sunset 12/31/22 
Heather reminded the group that Alternative services ends 12/31/22.  As of 10/1/22 corresponding 
Traditional Services authorizations were created. Also reminded providers to contact service coordinators 
if they have not received new purchase of service authorizations. 
 
Remote Services  
Heather provided update on the recent DDS directive regarding remote services.  
 

• Allows for continued access of services 
• Individuals can choose remote delivery of services (telephone, video) 
• Day Programs, Look-a-like day programs and Independent Living Services 
• Providers must notify HRC Service Coordinator of the person’s preference and document in ISP 
• HRC Service Coordinator will confirm the person’s preference within 90 days of notification 
• Services are to be the same as what is described in the program design 
• Remote Services may be offered through December 31, 2023  

 
 
 
 



Tailored Day Services 
Elizabeth provided update on Tailored Day Services designed to: 

• Create or support competitive integrated employment, volunteer activities, and paid internships 
• Assist in the pursuit of post-secondary education 

Provide opportunities for increased integration and inclusion within the community 
Services are to be provided in a 1:1 staffing ratio 

• For service providers that are already vendor with HRC, it will require a program design 
addendum.  

• HRC has developed writing guidelines for the TDS program design addendum. 
• For existing day service or employment providers that are interested in providing Tailored Day 

Services, please email Provider Relations Specialist, Brenda Bane at Brenda.Bane@harborrc.org 
to obtain a copy of the writing guidelines.  

• Information is posted on HRC website  
 
Rates 
Elizabeth Garcia Moya provided update on the current rate process: 
 

• The next phase of the rate implementation process will be 01/01/2023 for eligible service 
providers.  

• 50% of difference between March 31,2022 rate and applicable rate model/“benchmark rate” 
• Service Providers will be receiving a letter from HRC with their new rate.  
• Please submit rate questions to ratesquestions@harborrc.org  

 
Quality Incentive Program (QIP) 
Elizabeth Garcia Moya provided update on the recent QIP program: 

• DDS released a Workforce Survey that required completion by eligible service providers by June 
30, 2022.  

• Service providers that completed the survey may be eligible for a one-time incentive payment of 
$8,000.  

• DDS is in the process of validating the surveys and is notifying regional center in batches with 
the names of the providers that are eligible for the one-time incentive. 

 
HCBS Progress: 
Elizabeth Garcia Moya provided update on the progress for HRC service providers. 
 

• DDS issued guidance to regional for Non-Compliant Service Providers 
• HCBS training and support for service providers from DDS for the use of the HCBS funding plan 

to help support compliance with HCBS Final Rule 
• IntellectAbility-Person-Centered Thinking  
• ALO Consultants-training, Remediation Clinics, & 1:1 Consultants  
• Meeting HCBS Compliance by March 17, 2023 
• Remediation Plans 
• Validation  
• Providers are encouraged to contact their Provider Relations Staff liaisons for any questions  

 

 

mailto:ratesquestions@harborrc.org


Hospitalization and discharge planning When The Person from Your Home Has Been Hospitalized: 
Lisa and Princess N, RN HRC Consultants shared the following information process and reminded 
service providers to keep service coordinators and HRC nurses informed anytime a client is hospitalized 
or discharged. They are seeing a trend that clients are sometimes are discharge without the proper care, 
medications or equipment needed prior. 
 
Plan for the end at the beginning 

• Medications at Admission and at Discharge 
• Monitor Progress and Anticipate Transition 

The critical importance of holding Discharge Planning Meetings 
• Insuring Safe Returns Home 
• Don’t be Bullied – We got your back 
• Preventing Re-Hospitalization 
• Changes in condition – New care requirements or DME 
• Facility and Staff Requirements – RHCPs and Licensing Requirements 

 
Mobile Dental Clinic 
Steve shared with the group HRC’s partnership with UCLA School of Dentistry to provide a mobile 
dental client for adult clients having challenges going to dental offices for care. 

Whom should you refer? 
• Those without access to dental care or a dentist 
• Those who do not tolerate exams and cleaning well 
• Those who haven’t been to a dentist for a long time 

NOTE: Individuals must have dental care insurance coverage and transportation to the mobile clinic 
site.   
Next dental clinic is February 3, 2023 at HRC Long Beach office. HRC is exploring resources to host 
mobile dental clinic at other location site.  Providers were encourage to send client referrals to the service 
coordinators.   
 
Topics for ongoing trainings for 2023 
Heather encouraged the committee to start brainstorming of what topics they would like to have for 
ingoing trainings in the new year 2023.   
 
HRC encouraged providers to contact Vincente Miles at HRC to request PPE  
HRCPPERequest@harborrc.org  
 
Meeting Adjourn 11:40 a.m.  
 
 

 

 

 

mailto:HRCPPERequest@harborrc.org


 

INFORMACIÓN DE CONTACTO 
 Para contactar a la Officina Ejecutiva: 

Patrick Ruppe, Director ejecutivo  (310) 543-0632 
Jennifer Lauro, Asistente ejecutivo (310) 543-0632 
Jesús Jimenez, Asistente bilingüe de la Oficina Ejecutiva (310) 543-0606 

 

 Para ponserse en contacto con nuestra Junta, envíe  
 un correo electrónico a: publicinput@harborrc.org 
 

 Para localizar a su Coordinador de servicios 
visite:  https://www.harborrc.org/post/contact-our-staff 
 

 Para presenter una queja sobre el HRC, or uno de     
nuestros empleados, proveedores de servicios, o para 
solicitar una audiencia impacrial, vaya a: 
https://www.harborrc.org/complaints 

mailto:publicinput@harborrc.org
https://www.harborrc.org/post/contact-our-staff
https://www.harborrc.org/complaints


 

CONTACT INFO 
 To contact the Executive Office: 

Patrick Ruppe, Executive Director (310) 543-0632 
Jennifer Lauro, Executive Assistant (310) 543-0632 
Jesus Jimenez, Bilingual Executive Office Assistant (310) 543-0606 

 

 To contact our Board, submit an email to:  
 publicinput@harborrc.org 
 To locate your Service Coordinator:

 https://www.harborrc.org/post/contact-our-staff 
 

 To file a complaint about HRC, or one of our employees or 
 service providers and or to request a Fair Hearing, go to: 
 https://www.harborrc.org/complaints 

 

mailto:publicinput@harborrc.org
https://www.harborrc.org/post/contact-our-staff
https://www.harborrc.org/complaints


 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 We have arrived at the time on the agenda for public comment. 

 

 Participants should now turn the “interpreter” icon at 
 the bottom of your screen back to English. 
 

 To ask the Board a question, please use the RAISE YOUR 
HAND feature. To make a comment, please use the CHAT 
feature 
 

 We request that you please limit your comments to 5 
 minutes. 

THANK YOU! 



 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
Next Business Meeting of the Board 

March 21, 2023 


	1. WELCOME
	1. Agenda 01.17.23
	2. title_MINUTES
	2. Minutes 11.15.22
	3. title_FINANCIALS
	3. FINANCIALS_Oct
	3. FINANCIALS_Nov
	4. title_EXECUTIVE REPORT
	4.1 Budget Update
	4.2 Board Composition
	4.3 Strategic Planning update
	4.3 Strategic Plan Schedule
	4.4 Revised Policy Supported Living for Board Approval
	4.5 Contract for Board Approval
	4.6 Disparity public meetings
	4.7 2022 Holiday Giving
	4.8 Presentation_NCI
	5.0 COMMITTEE REPORTS
	5.1 Audit & draft Audit Report
	5.2 Board Dev 12.14.22
	5.3 CAC 11.12.22
	5.4 CSC 11.22.22
	5.5 SDP 11.02.22
	5.6 SDP 12.07.22
	5.7 SPAC 12.06.22
	6.0 Contact Info Spanish
	7.0 Contact Info
	8.0 PUBLIC COMMENT
	9.0 ADJOURNMENT
	FY22-23 2022-11 Summ 12-14-2022.pdf
	FOR BOARD
	Functional Expense Summary
	POS Contract Summary
	Line Item




